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TRANSMITTAL LETTER

Date: December 05, 2020
To

The valued Shareholders of National Polymer Industries Ltd.
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
The Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms [RISC)
Dhaka 5tock Exchange Limited [DSE) and

Chittagong 5tock Exchange Limited [CSE)

Subject: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2019-2020

Dear 5Sir(s),

We are pleased to enclose herewith the Annual Report of Mational Polymer Industries Limited for the
Financial Year 2019-2020 comprizsing, among others, the Annual Audited Financial Statements, Reports
of the Directors and the Auditors, the Certificate on compliance of the Corporate Governance Code for
your kind information and necessary record.

Thanking you

Sincerely yours
For Mational Polymer Industries Ltd.

U P

bid. Abdul Maleque
Company Secretary




NOTICE OF THE 33"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 33™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of National
Polymer Industries Limited will be held on Monday, 21 December 2020 at 11:00 AM virtually by using
Digital Platform to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA
1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon;
2. To approve dividend for the year ended on 30 June 2020, as recommended by the Board of
Directors;
3. To elect Director{s) in accordance with the pravisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company;
4. To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-2021 and fix their remuneration;
5. To appoint the Compliance Auditors for the financial year 2020-2021 and fix their
remuneration.
By arder of the Board
D P
Dated, Dhaka Md. Abdul Maleque
December 03, 2020 Company Secretary
MNOTES:

1. “Record Date” for the AGM: November 19, 2020.

2. The Shareholders” name appearing in the Members’ Register/Depository Register on the Record
Date will be eligible to attend and vote in the AGM through Digital Platform and to receive
dividend.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM can appoint a Proxy on his/her behalf, The

scanned copy of the Proxy Form, duly stamped shall be mailed to the email at
maleque@nationalpolymer.net at least 48 hours before the meeting.

4, As per BSEC Notification Mo, BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 158/208/Admin/B1 dated 20 June, 2018,
soft copy of the Annual Report 2019-2020 aleng with Proxy Form will be sent to the Members'
respective e-mail address available with ws through CDBL record. The Annual Report will also
be available in the Company’s website at www.nationalpolymer.net

5. The Link for joining the Virtual AGM: hitps://nationalpolymer. bdvirtualagm.com




COMPANY PROFILE

OUTLOOK

National Polymer Industries Limited has been in operation for over three decades and has established
itself as a prominent brand name in the country producing and offering a wide range of innovative and
superior quality products and services to its valued customers,

LEGAL FORM

MNational Polymer Industries Limited was Incorporated as a Public Limited Company in 1987 and started
its commiercial operation during the same year. The company has been listed with D5E in 1991 and C5E
in 1995 respectively. Being a listed company with the Stock Exchanges, it has a good track record and
maintains its status as "A" category company in the capital market. At present the company is being
operated with a paid-up capital of Tk. 364.92 million against an authorized capital of Tk. 3000.00

millian.
MISION
* To be the pre-eminent producer and supplier of premium quality products to its
existing and potential customers through preduct leadership, excellent value and best
services & solutions,
DBJECTIVES
¥ To promote guality products with the objective of setting a benchmark for industry
practice.
* To promote and development of standards, specifications and practices that help to
ensure the proper use of plastic products,
# To enhance knowledge and awareness of contemporary plastic pipeline technologies
amongst specifiers and installers.
¥ To satisfy customers with the highest quality products, services and solutions,
¥ To achieve excellence in creativity and imagination.
CORE VALUE
¥ Customers: Satisfy Customers with the highest guality products, services & supports.
# Excellence: Achieve excellence in people, creativity and imagination.
¥ Integrity: Be honest, upholding values and standards.
QUALITY POLICY

¥ Dur endeavor is to produce superior quality products with the aim to have satisfied
customers,

# To achieve this, we work hard and are committed to provide guality products with a
view to satisfying our valued customers, shareholders and workforces,

¥ We recognize the importance of our workforce and are committed to provide them
with environment, which incdudes better training and orientation for their
development, recognition and long-term relation.

¥ Procedures through the adherence to 150 2001:2015 & 14001:2015 and BST| standards.
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PRODUCT LINES
National Polymer Industries Limited has the following products in its product line:

uPVC Pressure pipe with rubber ring joint

uPVC Pressure Pipe with solvent joint

uPVC plumbing Pipe for water supply with threaded joint
uPVC Sewer-Waste-Rain water disposal pipe with solvent joint
PPR & CPVC Pipes & Fittings for installation of hot and cold water supply lines
uPVC Conduct pipe for electric wiring with solvent joint

uPVC Well casing pipe

uPYC Robo-screen filter

uPVC Ribbed Filter

Bottle grade PVC Compound

Hand Pump for Drinking Water and irrigation

PVC Doors, Sheets & Fall Ceiling

Water Tank & Tap etc.

WX WY W W W W Y W YW W Y

MAJOR CLIENTS

Department of Public Health Engineering (DFHE)

Barind Multi-Purpose Development Authority (BMDA)
Bangladesh Agricultural Development Corporation {BADC)
Local Government and Engineering Department (LGED)
World Bank Funded Project

Aslan Development Bank (ADB) Funded Project

Islamic Development Bank (IDB) Funded Project

LIMICEF

JICA

HYSAWA

Developers and Real Estate Companies in the country and
Other Water Supply & sanitation projects in Bangladesh.

OPERATIONS

WYV WY W YWY Y Y YW

The Company is actively engaged in manufacturing its products mentioned abowe for building,
construction, irrigation, sanitation and household usages & solutions. The Compamny distributes its
manufactured products through the expanded distribution channel to every nock and cormer of the
country and also abroad competing with other local manufacturers. The production system of the
company is equipped with skilled manpower, latest technology and most advanced machineries from
Asia and Europe and raw materials from Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand, Taiwan and China. The
factory has increased its utilized production capacity to 38,922 MT from its initial 500 MT.

BUSINESS

Mational Palymer has established itself as a prominent brand name in the market. The Company is on a
well-defined growth stage with its diversified quality products and efficient services to the valued
customers. Despite different challenges and strong competition in the market, the Company has
maintained its profitable status in terms of business.
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BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Golam Murshed
Chairperson of the Board

Mr. Golam Murshed, son of Late Golam Azam and late Amina Khatun was born in 1953, He Completed his
Graduation from the University of Dhaka in 1974, After completing his academic career, Mr, Murshed |oined
in his family business. He is a dynamic businessman and hasz a vast experience in Plastic and PVE sectors. He
has been with Mational Polymer Industries as the Sponsor Director since its inception and contributing a lot
for the development of the Company. Currently, he is performing his duties and responsibilities as the
Chairman of the Company. Apart from National Polymer Industries Ltd.. Mr. Murshed is the owner of “GM
Trading”, a renowned trading business of plastics raw materials.

Mr. Riad Mahmud
Managing Director

Mr. Riad Mahmud obtained his academic gualification on B. 5¢ in Chemical Engineering from the University
of Texas at Austin in 1994 and MBA (Finance) from the University of Melbourne, Australia in 1999, After
completing his academic career, Mr. Mahrmud enriched himself working In the senior pasitions of different
organizations in Sydney, London and New York. Returning from abroad, Mr. Mahmued, who is the Sponsor
Shareholder of Mational Polymer Industries Ltd., joined the Board of the Company in 2007 as a Director and
has subsequently been elected as the Managing Director of the company in 2009. Since then he has been
leading the company very efficiently and successfully and at present the Company is on a solid growth stage
under his dynamic leadership. Apart from National Polymer Industries Ltd,, Mr. Mahmud is the founder of
several businesses entities in other sectors, incleding the First Leed Gold Certified 100% export oriented
footwear factory in Bangladesh named Shoeniverse Footwear Ltd, Mr. Mahmud s also the Managing Director
of Mational Fittings and Accessories (Pvt) Ltd. and NPOLYMER Construction (Pvt.) Ltd. He is the Vice Chairman
of Diamond Life Insurance Company Ltd.

He is the Honorary Consul of the Republic of Georgia in Bangladesh, appointed by the respective Foreign
Ministries of both Georgia and Bangladesh.

Besides, Mr. Mahmud has been teaching MBA courses at the School of Business and Ecomomics at Morth
South University, the most prestigious private University in Bangladesh.

He has also been elected as the Vice President of Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies
|BAPLC), Member of the Executive Committee of Bangladesh Plastics Goods Manufacturers and Exporters
|BPGMEA] and Korea-Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce and Industry (KBCCI) and General Body Member of
FBCCL He is also a member of American Society of Chemical Engineers.

His is also the Member of DTC Establishment Committes, established by the Ministry of Commerce of the
People's Republic of Bangladesh with support from The World Bank, which is tasked with implementing
Export Competitiveness for Jobs (EC4)) Project. The EC4)is designed to enhance the growth and
competitiveness of priority sectors, and to create more and better job opportunities. As part of this initiative
a specialized state-of-the-art Design and Technology Center (DTC) |s going to be established Infaround Dhaka
for leather goods and footwear industry. The DTC ks an important step towards a systemic solution for a
sustainable leather goods and footwear industry within a more diversified econonmy.

Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan
Director, Nominated by ICB

Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan, son of late Nurun Nabi Khan and Mrs. Jahanara Begum was born in 1962 in Satkhira,
He has completed his Post Graduation in Economics from the University of Rajshahi in 1989 and started his
career with Investment Corporation of Bangladesh {ICB) in the same year. In his ongoing 30 years’ experience
in ICB, he waorked on administration and merchant banking activities. He also obtained Diploma in banking
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from the Institution of Bankers, Bangladesh, He enriched his career through jeining various training programs
offered by different crganizations at home and abroad. Currently, Mr. Ehan is holding the position of Deputy
General Manager In the Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICE). He jolned the Board of Natlonal Polymer
Industries Ltd. on May 28, 2018 as the Nominated Director and discharging his duties and responsibilities to
the Board as an active participant.

Mr. Raguibul Alam
Independent Director

Mr. Raquibul Alam, son of Mr. Nazmul Alam and Ms. Anjumanara &lam, was born in 1973, He has obtained
MEBEA major in Finance from the Unbhversity of Vanderbllt, UsA in 2000, After accomplishing his academic
career, Mr. Alam has enriched his career working in different renowned organizations at home and abroad.
Among others, the followings are mentionable:

Senior Management Consultant, PricewaterhouseCoopers (2000-2002);

Manager, Planning and Logistics, British American Tobacco (2003 - 2006);

Director, Absolute Solutions Ltd. (2007 - 2010);

Wice President, Robi Asiata (Mar 2010 - Dec 2011);

Head of Supply Chain Department, Coasts Bangladesh Ltd. {lan 2012 - Sep 2016);
Head of Supply Chain Department, Berger Paints Bangladesh Led. {Oct 2015 - till date);

In his long career, Mr. Alam is currently performing his duties and responsibilities very efficiently as the Head
of Supply Chain in Berger Paints Bangladesh Ltd, Based on his sound educational background and vast
experience in the corporate sector, the Board of Directors has appointed Br. Alam as the Independent
Director of the Company on October 27, 2018 for the tenure of 03 (three) years (FY 2008-2013, 2019-2020
and 2020-2021), as approved by the Shareholders in the 31* Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Mohammed Ariful Islam
Independent Director

Mr. Mohammed Ariful Islam, son of Mr. Aminul slam and Mrs. Nasim Akhiter was born [n 1979, He abtalined
his BBA & MBA degrees in Marketing and International Business from the North South University, the maost
prestigious and Mo, 1 Private University in Bangladesh. After completing academic career, Mr. Islam entered
into the Business world and enriched his career working in different business organizations as follows:

*  Customer Services Officer, H3BC, Bangladesh (May 2003 - Dec 2005);

Chief Operating Officer, Danish Deslgn House Ltd, (March 2006-lan 2008);
Chief Operating Officer, Sonia Limited (Feb 2008-luly 2009);

Proprietor, Versatile Trading International {Aug 2008 - Till date);

kdanaging Partner, K. P. Petroleumn Refineries (Feb 2011 = June 2008);
Managing Director & CEQ, Versatile Autormobiles Ltd. (lune 2009 - Till date);
hanaging Director, Dhaka Republic [Feb 2014 - Till date];

hanaging Director, Brews & Bites (lune 2014 - Till date);

Managing Director, Chittagong Bull (Jan 2016 =Till date);

Proprietor, Versatile Property Management Services (April 2018 = Till date}.

Mr. Mohammed Ariful 1slam 15 a Member of Bangladesh Reconditioned Vehicles Importers & Dealers
Association (BARVIDA), the renowned business association for import, sales and distribution of reconditioned
vehicles in Bangladesh. He Is alsa a member of Gulshan Society, Chittagong Samity, Army Golf Club and Elite
Club Ltd, Dhaka, He is a Trustee Member of Sunshine Charities, a 100% not-for-profit organization, providing
free medical treatment to the poor, needy and deprived population of our society in Dhaka and Chittagong,
Based on his academic and professional background, the Board of Directors has appointed him as the
Independent Director of the Company on August 06, 2019 for the tenure of 03 (three) years [FY 2019-2020,
2020-2021 & 2021-2022), as approved by the Shareholders in the 32™ Annual General Meeting.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders and well-wishers of
Mational Polymer Industries Ltd.
Assalamualikumi)

I, on behalf of the Members of the Board, have the pleasure to welcome you on the occasion of the 33
Annual General Meeting [AGM) of Mational Palymer Industries Ltd.

Meanwhile, the Annual Report-2019-2020 of our Company has been dispatched to you for your kind
perusal. | believe that you have got a comprehensive view from the Directors’ Report and the Audited
Financial Staterments of the Company. | presume that the performance of the company during the year
under review is satisfactory, despite massive impact of COVID-19 pandemic, notonly on the national but
alsa the global economy.

Though COVID-19 primarily surfaced as a public health concern, it has rapidly transformed into the sodio-
economic and humanitarian catastrophe, the world never faced such problem before. On all levels-
individual, collective, national, regional and international- the people around the world have been
immensely affected by this pandemic, From small businesses to the big corporate houses- nobody has
been spared of the hardships brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic.

It is my pleasure to share you that despite the critical situation we are passing, the Company has
maintained its profitable results by struggling against the catastrophe. During the year under review, the
Company has achieved 14.43% revenue growth over the previous year.

Tao stay on the top of the competition, we always work hard to maintain the sustainable development of
our cempany and upheld the value of our esteemed shareholders, customers and other stakeholders
providing them with the guality products, services and solutions.

Mational Polymer has established procedures to ensure the compliance with all applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements to maintain the sustainable growth. The Company is committed to ensure
adequate transparency, quality procedures and good corporate governance. We believe that our business
chjectives are not only to maximize the profitability but also to address the needs of the society.

I would like to conclude by expressing my appreciation and thanks to the Govt. & Non-Gowt
organizations, Banks, NBFIs, valued Shareholders and Customers for their trust, support and guidance in
running our business properly. | also like to thank my fellow Board Members and all the employees of the
company for their sincerely support and hard work without which it would not be possible to achieve our
objectives.

Finally, | pray to the Almighty to protect not only our nation but also the people all over the world from
any maore hardships from the COVID-19 pandemic saomn.

Thanking you all,

towe

iGolam Murshed)
Chalrman
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamualikum!

It is my honor and privilege to welcome you to the 33™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of National Palymer
Industries Lid. | would like to thank you for providing me the opportunity to share and exchange my thoughts
and views on the performance of the Company.

The main object of our company s to maximize shareholders’ wealth by making profit. From the very
beginning, our Management Team has been committed to malntalning the sustalning growth and steady
profit of the company and also committed to provide a sustainable return to the shareholders.
Unfortunately, every year we are facing cne after another unprecedented difficulties, which hinder our
objective. This year, we are facing such a serious problem - COVID-19 pandemic, which wreaked havoc on
both the national and global economy. It has led to a situation that will take the world years to fully recover
from. While the Bangladesh's economy still shows growth status, the pandemic has slowed down the rate
significantly.

Many businesses entities will not be able to survive ultimately due to the pandemic ccourred around the
world, but National Polymer will not be one of them Inshallah! Qur commitment to good governance, high
quality standards and socially responsible business practices will never waiver to fight for our survival. We
are striving together for the sustainable growth of business and commitbed to deliver a leng term value with
integrity to the shareholders and other stakeholders.

Due to the pandermic, many major companies have failed to pay their employees and many of the employees
have been released from their jobs. It is a great tribute not only to the operational efficiency of the company
but also to the integrity and lovalty of the management that National Polymer Industries Ltd. has not laid off
a single employee due to the pandemic. In fact, we are striving to create several job opportunities, when
possible. Furthermore, every single employee of our company from top to bottom has been paid their wages
in a timely fashion.

It is my pleasure to report you that despite various challenges specially COVID-19 pandemic, during the year
under review, the Company has maintained its profitable status by achieving the revenue from sales Tk
343.29 crore and net profit Tk, 15.03 crore with 14.43% and 18.12% growth respectively against the previous

year.

Considering the overall business situation, the Board of Directors has recommended 15% Cash dividend for
the year ended 30 Jume 2020, which will be disbursed to your bank account through BEFTN within the
stipulated time after having necessary approval in the AGM,

I would like to conclude by expressing my gratitude and appreciation to the Board of
Directors, the Management Team and all employees of the company for their eamest support and
cooperation, Special thanks must go to our factory staffs and sales team for their dedication and hand work
to achleve our objectives, Very special thanks to our valued shareholders and customers for their continued
support and cooperation in running our business successfully.

Finally, | pray to the Almighty and expect that the difficult times we are pazsing will end very soon.

Thanking you all

=4 W
Riad Mahmisd
Managing Director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended on June 30, 2020

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | have the pleasure to welcome you all to the 33™ Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of National Polymer Industries Limited and present before you the Annual Report
2019-2020 along with the Directors’ Report, Auditor’s Report and the Audited Financlal Statements of
the Company.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The year under review is very much eventful especially for COVID-19 pandemic, still we are passing
throwgh it, we newer faced such problems before. The people around the world have been serioushy
affected by this pandemic. From small businesses to the big corporate houses- nobody has been
spared of the hardships brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic. Taking into accounts of this crisls
and other challenges, we are striving relentlessly to go ahead for the sustainable growth of our
company. As a result, we were able to complete the year successfully by achieving a positive revenue
growth of the Company. As per the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on June 30, 2020, the comparative key financial information is given below for your better
understanding on the overall perfarmance of the Company:

Particulars 2019-2020 (Taka) 2018-2019 [Taka) Growth (%)
Revenue 3,432,956,238 | 3,000,007,744 14.43%
Gross Profit 602,184,320 | 557,787,699 7.96%
Operating expenses (201,998 634) (206,269, 808) (2.07%)
Profit before WPPF & Tax 210,358 293 178,536,519 17.82%
Met Prafit 150,255,924 137,207,270 18.12%
EPS 4,12 3.49 18.05%
DECLARATION OF DIVIDEDM

Considering the overall business situation of the Company, the Board of Directors has recommended
15% Cash Dividend for the year ended on 30 June, 2020, The recommended Cash Dividend will be
disbursed to the Shareholders through their bank accounts, whose names have been recorded in the
Register of Members/Depository Register on the Record Date e, Novermnber 19, 2020 within the
stipulated time after having approval of the sharehalders in the Annual General Meeting [AGM],

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK B POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPNEMT

Year of establishment r 1987

Legal form : Public Comparny Limited by shares

Listing with Stock Exchange : 19591

Authorized capital ; The. 3000 Million

Pald-up capital » Tk 364,92 Million

Mo. of shares issued : 36,491 834

Mature of business : Manufacturer & Supplier of UPVC, CPVC & PP-A Fipes, Fittings, Doors,
Sheets, Fall Ceiling, Water Tanks, Water Taps eic

Certification (150 S001: 2015 & 14001: 2015, OHSAS 18001: 2007 and B5TI

Credit Rating i Long Term: A+ & Short Term: $T-2 and Outlook- Stable.

The Management of the company continues their efforts to diversify and expand the business, As per
commitment, the Company has already introduced some new products in its product lines, like PVC
sheet, door, falls ceiling, water tank, water tap etc., which have gained wide acceptance in the market.
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Our PVC doors has occupied the 2™ position in market share. In addition to local market, our products
are also being exported to India, Nepal, Bhutan and Saudi Arabia. Anticipating a good demand for our
products at home and abroad, we are foousing on enhancing the production capacity of our plant with
aview to producing more innovative products and solutions to meet tomorrow’'s challenges.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company’s operation is carried out and managed as a single operating segrment for manufacturing
and marketing of PVC pipes, CPVC pipes, PPR pipes, PYC sheets, doors, water tanks, water taps etc,
for water supply, sanitation and building material solution. S0, no segment reporting is felt necessary.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Risk and Concern is the integral part of business. Like others, our business may also be affected by risk
and uncertainties. Details of risk factors and the ways to handle such events are stated in the
Statement of Management's Discussion and Analysis,

CO5T OF GOODS S0LD, GROSS PROFIT MARGIN AND NET PROFIT MARGIMN

It can be seen from the financial statements of the year ended 30 June 2020 that the Gross Profit
Margin and the Net Profit Margin of the company Increased compared to the previous year, which Is
highlighted below:

Particulars 2019-2020 (Taka) 2018-2019 (Taka)
Cost of Goods sold 2,830,771,919 2,442.220,045
Gross Profit Margin 202,184,320 557,787,699
Net Profit Margin 150,255,924 127,207,270

EXTRA-ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AND THEIR IMPLICATION (GAIN OR LOSS)

Mo such event of any extra ordinary gain or loss occurred during the reporting year, which would
require to disclose in the finandial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions are stated in note No. 40,00 of the financial statements.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ALSO REPORT THAT:

* Mo fund raised through public issues, rights issues and/or any other instruments during
the year.

& The Company did not give any offer for IPO, RPO, Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing etc.
during the year.

# Significant variance between Quarterly Financial performances and Annuwal Financial
Statements: During the reporting year the Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (MOCFPS)
is increased compared to the previous year. The main reason for significant variance In
MOCFPS between the Annual Financial Statements |s the cash inflow of Tk, 19.51 crore AIT
refund, which was nil during the precocious year.

® Remuneration paid to the Directors including Independent Director{s):-Directors of
Mational Polyrmer Industries Ltd. don’t get any facilities/remuneration, bonus or any other
form, except the Managing Director for his direct participation in the Company’s day to
day operations. Honorarium (board meeting fees) paid to the Directors including the
Independent Directors is disclosed in note No, 20.00 of the financial statements.
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# Financial Statements, prepared by the Management of the Company present fairly its

state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in eguity;

FProper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the
Financial Statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgments;

#  Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting
Standards (I1AS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh.

& Internal Control system: The Company has implemented sound internal control system,
which is wvery much effective to detect fraud, error and mistreatment thereof. The
Company gives strong emphasis on Internal Control Systems to ensure good corporate
governance and accountability. The Board of Directors has formed the Audit Committes
headed by an Independent Director as per BSEC reguirements. The Audit Committes
monitors the effectiveness of the internal control functions on regular basis. The
Committes then makes recommendations based on the policies and procedures adopted
by the Board of Directors for proper implementation.

# Protection of Minority Shareholders’ Interest: National Polymer believes that good
Corporate Governance involves in building cooperation between all stakehaolders involved
in the Company, including the owners of the Company = the Shareholders. The Board of
Directors is committed to ensuring the highest standards of governance designed to
protect the interests of all stakeholders, including the rights of its minority shareholders
while promoting integrity, transparency and accountability.

There is no significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
Significant deviations from the last year’s operating results: During the wyear the
Company has achieved 14,43% sales growth against the previous year. At the same time
Company has managed to control 15 operating expenses, which has been reduced
significantly against the previous year.

# The Company's key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years have
been disclosed in page No. 31 of the Annual Report.

The Company has declared 15% Cash Dividend for the yvear ended on June 30, 2020.
The Board of Directors has not declared and shall not declare bonus share or stock
dividend as interim dividend.

#  The total number of Board Meetings held during the year and attendance by each Director
has been stated In page No. 33 of the Annual Report,

&  The pattern of shareholding has been disclosed page No. 32 of the Annual Report.

=  Information relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors:- Relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, brief resume of Director(s), nature of his or
her expertise and name of companies in which hefshe holds the directorship and the
membership of committees of the Board have been disclosed in page No. B of the Annuwal
Report.

Management's discussion and analysis is disclosed in page Neo. 17 of the Annual Report.
Declaration or certification by the CEQ and the CFD to the Board is disclosed in page No.
34 of the Annual Report.

# The report as well as certificate regarding the compliance of Conditions of Corporate
Governance Code as required under condition Mo. 9 are disclosed as per Annexure-B and
Annexure-C is attached in page No, 36 of the Annual Report.
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QUALITY POLICY

The Company strictly maintains the quality procedures to manufacture and market its products with
the aim to maximize the customers’ satisfaction by adopting high quality standards, using modern
machineries & technology and hiring competent & qualified personnel. To achieve this, National

Polymer has adopted 150 9001:2015 - Quality Management Systems. Enhancement of knowledge and
skill of the employees threugh regular training programs is one of our top most priorities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

In real sense, Mational Polymer believes that the employees are the best resources for the organization
and their motivation is a vital factor for the growth and development of the organization, because of
its direct impact on productivity. National Polymer focuses on the employvees to optimize their
creativity, performance and sustzinable improvement by ensuring 2 safe and healthy working
environment, cobesive corporate culture, proper training, reward & recognitien and varlous employee
benefit schemes.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES [CSR)

As a corporate citizen, National Polymer endeavors to discharge its responsibilities towards the society
and the environment, Our social responsibilities includes our valued customers, employees,
shareholders, business associates and other stakeholders. The Board of Directors is aware of the social
development as part of the corporate social responsibility (CSR), especially in the areas of race-
religion-regional equality, non-employment of child labor, prevention of environmental pollution ete.
We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability but also to address
the neads of the society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Is the practice of good citizenship, through which a Company Is governed by
the Board of Directors, keeping in view its accountability to the Shareholders and other Stakeholders.
National Polymer is committed to ensure a good governance in the organization by complying with all
of the regulatory requirements. Our goal is to enhance our corporate value, maintain sustainable
development and generate greater returns for our shareholders. In order to achieve these, the Board
of Directors is committed to implement the good governance system in the Company through a
culture of accountability, transparency and well-understood policles and procedures,

ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR(S)

As per relevant clause of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan, Director
has retired from the Board this year. Being eligible, Mr. Khan has been re-elected for the next term,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the AGM. In terms of condition number 1 (5) (xxiv) of
the BSEC Motification dated 03 June, 2018, the qualification and expertise of Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan
has been stated in page No, 8 of the annual report,

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Company's present Auditer Mfs Mahfel Hug & Co., Chartered Accountants audited the financial
staterments of the Company for the year ended on 30 June 2020 and retired this year. It is mentioned
that Mahfel Hug & Co., Chartered Accountants conducted the audit for the preceding 03 (three) years.
As per the DSE listing regulations, 2015, Mahfel Hug & Co., Chartered Accountants is not eligible for
re-appointment. Considering the BSEC enlistment, previous decent professiomal records and
competitive professional fee, M/fs. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants has been
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the next financial year 2020-2021, subject to
the approval of the Shareholder in the AGM.

.~ anNuaLmeeoRTzol9-2020  eAckas



APPOINTMENT OF COMPLIANCE AUDITOR

M /s Shafig Mizan Rahman & Augustine, Chartered Accountants acted as the Corporate Governance
Compliance Auditor of the Company for the FY 2019-2020 and retired this year. The Board of Directors
has appointed M/fs Mahfel Hug & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Corporate Governance
Compliance Auditor of the Company for the next FY 2020-2021, subject to the approval of
Sharehelders in the AGM,

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express sincere thanks and appreciation to the Honorable Shareholders,
valued Customers, BSEC, DSE, CSE, RISC, NBR, Bankers, MBFIs and Insurance Companies for their
support, co-operation and guidance towards our business endeavors. The Board also expresses the
heartiest thanks to the management team as well as all the employees of the Company whose
perseverance, professionalism and hard works contribute a lot in achieving the Company’s objectives.

For and on behalf of the Board

t e

[Golam Murshed)
Chairperson of the Board




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

National Polymer Industries Ltd. started it journey in 1987 with the vizion of becoming the market leader
with its premium guality products, excellent value and superior services & solutions. Taking into account of
these, the Management Team headed by the Managing Director undertakes the strategic decision on regular
basis. The Management s pleased to present you a short review on the overall operational and financial
performance of the Company.

INDUSTRY AMALYSIS

The Company is actively engaged in manufacturing different sizes of uPVC, CPVC, PPR pipes & Fittings, PVC
sheets, doors, water tanks, water taps etc. for building, construction, irfigation, sanitation and household
usages and solutlons. The Company supplies its manufactured products to every nock and corner In the
country and also exports to India, Nepal, Bhutan and Saudi-Arabia and other countries competing with other
local manufacturers, The production system of the company is equipped with competent manpower, latest
technology, most advanced rachineres from Asia and Europe, raw materials from Japam, Malaysia,
Singapore, Thalland, Talwan and China. The Company has Increased |ts utilized preduction capacity to 38,922
T from its initial 500 pT.

FINAMCLIAL ANALYSIS
Revenwe Generation
Mational Polymer Industries Ltd. has been experiencing the increasing revenue trend over the years. During

the FY 2019-2020, the Company has reported its revenue BOT 3,432.96 million with the growth of 14.43%
over the previous year. Year-wise revenuve generation of preceding five years is as follows:

Flmarnclal Year Revenue (in Taka)
2019-2020 3,431,956 238
2018-2019 3,000,007, 744
2017-2018 2 366,380,577
2016-2017 1,866,687 057
2015-2016 1,7559,312,087

Cost and Profitability

Dwring the reporting year, the net profit margin of the company increased by 18.12% compared to the
pravious year. This is because, the Company has managed to control its operating expenses significanthy
compared to the previous year. As per Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2020,
the comparative key financlal Information Is ghven below:

Particulars 2015-2020 (Taka) 2018-2019 (Taka)
Cost of Goods Sold 2,830,771,919 2,442,220,045
Operating Expenses 201,998,634 206,269,808
Gross Profit Margin 602,184,320 557,787,699
Profit before WPPF & Tax 210,358,293 178,536,519
Net Profit Margin 150,255,924 127,207,270

Financial Pasitien

Assets base of the Company is growing steadily and total assets of the company stood at Tk
4,504,502, 778.00 In the Finamclal Year 2019-2020, as agalnst Tk. 4,180,780,745.00 in 2008-2019. On the
other hand, total liabilities {Excepting Deferred Tax Liability] of the Company is Tk, 3,115,934,058.00 for the
reparting year against Tk, 2,935 387, 740,00 in the previous year (Excluding Deferred Tax Liability),

OTHER STATEMENTS AS PER THE BSEC'S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION FOR PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of Mational Polymer Industries Ltd. hawve been prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (145) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable
in Bangladesh, the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rules and other
applicable laws in Bangladesh.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION

There is ne changes in acoounting palicies and estimation, occurred during the year that might have effect
on the financial performance or results and the financial position as well as cash flows.

COMPARATIVE ANALYLIS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AMND FINANCIAL POSITION AS WELL AS CASH

* Deferred Tax Liabllicy rot considered

FLOW'S OF PRECEEDING FIVE YEARS
Figures in Taka
Particulars S019-2030 F01B-201% 2017-2018 2006-2017 20153016 2014-2015
Revenue 3,432,956,238 | 3,000,007,784 | 2,356,380,577 | 1,B66,687.057 | 1,759,312,097 | 1,707,971,741
Gross Profit &3, 184 330 557, 77,699 387458951 T.293. 861 291,563,613 87,342,185
Profit Before
BBE & Tonatian 210,358.203 | 178536510 | 111,360,564 93,503,107 £8,524,201 64,285,001
Net Profit 150,255924 | 137,207,270 79,350,886 66,741,633 48,545 858 45,917,858
Eamings Per 412 435 324 327 287 318
Ethare
*Carfings Per
Share (Rpstatec]) 3,48 265 272 2,80 270
:;"::"m 1,873,723,605 | 1,826,858,228 | 1629743504 | 1,246,727.606 | 1,074,148,779 | 1.091,229,261
Current Assets 2,630,779,173 | 2,353,922,517 | 1832529413 | 1,507.046,088 | 1,245871,358 | 1388071317
Total Assats 4504, 502,778 | 4,180,780,745 | 3,452,273,008 | 2,684,673,503 | 2,320,020,137 | 2,479,300,578
:_”:;:"d 3,000,000,000 | 500,000,000 | 500000000 | S00,000000 | 500,000,000 | 500,000,000
Paid up Cagital 364,918,340 | 299,113400 | 245,174,920 | 204,312.440 | 170,260,370 | 144,288,450
i'“::’"”""l 1,300,083, 706 | 1165907801 | 1062004015 | 1,080,197514 | OBS 204,045 | 036,258,157
“‘Li::}; 2367008848 | 5 352,938,054 | 1,919,205568 | 1,611,959,788 | 1,049,508,371 | 1,327,756,735
;:";:mr 548,895,210 | 682,449,686 | 401487510 | 123031377 | 205422787 | 135,800,672
Total Liababties &
Sharehodd ers’ 4504 502,778 | 4,180, 7R0,745 | 3452 273,008 | 2844,RT3693 | 2320,020,137 | 2474300578
Equity
NAV Per Share 587 3008 43132 50,42 5786 64,80
*MAY Per Share
3195 3551 42,02 4827 5400
{Restated)
NOCFPS 6.6G6 022 8,51 2458 11.72 2536 |
*NOCFPS
(Restated) 12.659) T.r3 20,48 9,77 21.49
Miarket Price Per
Share (On 30 56,50 111.16 85.40 107,00 #3.30 2350
June)
15% 22% 22% 20% 20% 16%
Dividend Cash Dividend
" o) | Stock Dividend | Stack Dividend | Steek Dividend | Stock Dividend | Stack Dividend
:::E‘""""’ 1374 26.14 27.52 33 76 28,98 7592
Current Ratio 1.02 1.04 0.5% 0,549 1.1% 1.05
Retisrn on Equity
{ROE] Ratio-% 11,48 1691 147 648 497 4,90
Frafit Margin
o 5 438 a4 135 3,58 278 269
**Total Debt -
culty Rotic 238 252 218 168 137 155
* with Effect of Banus Shares
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COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE OR RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION AS WELL AS CASH
FLOWS WITH THE PEER INDUSTRY SCEMARIC

National Polymer Industries Ltd. (NPIL) listed with the Stock Exchange is the manufacturing company that
manufactures and markets a wide range of products such as: PVC, CPVC E PPR Fipes, Fittings, Doors, Sheats,
Water Tanks, Water Taps etc, in a large scale. There is simply another company listed with the Stock Exchange
named Aziz Pipes Ltd. that manufactures only PV pipes. The volume of operational, financlal and business
activities and performance of Aziz Plpes Ltd. Is ten times lower than NPIL. 50, actual comparison of financial
performance and fimancial position as well as cash flows with the peer industry [Aziz Pipes Ltd.) is not

possible.

FINAMCIAL AND ECONOMIC SCENARIO OF THE COUNTRY AND THE GLOBE
BANGLADESH SCENARIO

Currenitly, COVID-19 pandemic is one of the top-most spoken matters in the world started in Wuhan, Chaina
in December 2019, then spread to other countries in the world. Bangladesh has been facing the crisis from
March 2020, Like other countries, Bangladesh’s economy has also been seriously affected by this pandemic.
From small businesses to the big corporate houses- nobody has been spared of the hardships brought about
by the COVID-19 pandemic. Though the Bangladesh's economy shows growth status, the pandemic has
slowed down the rate signiflcantly, Bangladesh's GOP grawth rate Is recorded at 5,20% in the flscal year/FY
2019-2020, which was 8.13% in the last fiscal year/Fy 2018-2019. Per capita income of the country is
recorded 5 1,B87.97 in this year, against 51,906 in the previous year.

GLOBAL SCEMARIO

The global economy in now at a devastating stage due to the COVID-19 pandemic. On all levels- individual,
collective- the people all over the world have been massively affected by this pandemic. According to the
IMF, most of the countries” GDP growth rate slowed down negatively (except 22 countries). The world's
average GOP growth rate is recorded MINUS FIGURE (4.4%) in 2020, which was PULS 3.55% in 2019, It shows
that OOWID-19 pandemic has led the world to a situation that will take years to fully recover from.

RISK AND CONCERN IS5UES AND MITIGATION PLAN

Risk and concerns is the integral parts of business. The Management of the Company regularly monitors,
asses and identifies the probable risks and threats to the profitability and sustainable growth of business,
The risks and concerns related to the Company and mitigation plans are stated as follows:

INDUSTRY RISK

Matiomal Polymer operates in plastic industry with the maost advanced technologies and machineries since
its inception, which deals PYC products. There are number of companies exist in the market with similar
products. There lies risk of entrance of new entry and competition among existing companies.

Mitigation: Professionals with decades of experience are working to manage the above risk successfully,
National Polymer is always the introducer and market leader in experiencing new machineries and
technologles in the industry. The Company has specific set of policies to cope with new entrance and
managing competitions ameong the existing players in the market. Moreover, NPIL has economies of scale
advantage due to its large production capacity and it will be difficult for any new entrant to build up such a
large capacity within few years’ time.

CREDIT RISK

Criedit risk is the risk of potential financial loss due to the non-performance of a financial contract or financial
aspects or non-performance In any contract arlsing from the Company’s accounts receivables from
customers and other recefvables.

Mitigation: Company's credit policy is in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored by taking into
consideration of all aspects of such risk. NPIL has credit evaluation policy and standard business cycle
processes. i alse maintains proper securities like “Bank Guarantee™ against maximum receivables.
Therefore, credit risk of the Company is minimal and well managed,
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liguidity risk refers to a firm’s possible inability to meet its short-term debt abligations, thereby incurring
exceptionally huge losses.

Mitigation: The Management of the company ensures that it has sufficlent cash and cash equivalents to
meet the expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow
forecast based on timeline of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient
liguidity to make the expected payment within due date. Moreover, the Company seeks to maintain short
term credit lines with scheduled commercial banks to ensure payment of obligations in the event that there
is insufficient cash to make the required payment.

MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the Company.
Mastly, the risk arises from falling demand for the products or services, which would harm the performance
of the Comparny,

Mitigation: Mational Polymer has strong brand equity in the market. Moreover, for a growing economy like
Bangladesh, there would always be demand fior PYC products, Our RED team always works to introduce new
praducts in the product lines, As proof, the Company has been posting healthy revenue growth fior the past
few years consistenthy.

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

Mational Polymer is invoheed in importing different raw materials from the abroad against payment of
international currencies [U5D & Eura). Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates may affect the cost of purchase
and inventories of the business, affecting the company’s profitability. This may happen when Taka devalues
against foreign currencies.

Mitigation: As the standard practice, while submitting its financial offers to the customers, NPIL makes its
own judicious projection of exchange rates, depending on the timing of procurement. From the experience,
NPIL has been generally accurate in such projections, and it usually not suffers any exchange loss. To mitigate
Forex risk for the import of its raw materials, the Company enters in Forwand Contracts with its LC opening
banks to mitigate Forex risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk s the chance that an unexpected change in interest rates will negatively affect the
Company. If the rate of interest on the outstanding borrowings increases, the finance cost of the company
may increase, affecting its futwre liability.

Mitigation: National Polymer has legal contracts with its banks for fixing up the rate of interest on both near
and mid-term borrowings. These contracts are renewed periodically after negotiation with the banks. Being
an excellent borrower to its bank, NPIL also negotiates interest rates downwards if market rate falls below
its contract rates. We always keep our keen eyes on interest rate trends in the market with a view to
negotiating with the lenders and taking competitive advantage in time.

TECHNOLOGY RELATED RISK

Technology always plays a vital role for the existence of any industry concern, ensuring minimizes of
production cost in various aspects and better services to the customers. The production facilities of a
company are based on currently avallable technologles.

Mitigation: National Pelymer enjoys the access to the advanced technologles in its production lines, It has
adopted the most advanced technologies fior its production and Is considered as the pioneer to introduce
the most efficient production technologies as and when it is available in the world markets. Moreower, its
highly experienced engineering team is always ready to keep the machineries proper to achieve the most
efficient production output.
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EMPLOYEE TURNOVER RISK

The turnower of key managerial personnel, executives and officers may have adverse Impact on business,
operating results and future growth,

Mitigation: The Company places the priority on develeping human resources. Importance is given to on-the-
jioh, in-rouse and external training programs for employees to enhance their knowledge curve. The Company
arranges training program for its core personnel on continuous basis to cope with the growing challenges
with the changing working environment. It also offers competitive emoluments to the employees to
encourage the professionalism. Historically, employee turnover at NPIL has been very negligible.

FUTLURE PLAN OR PROJECTION OR FORECAST FOR COMPANY'S OPERATIONS

The Management of National Polymer Industries Ltd. runs the business with the alm of making It as a
sustainable growing business entity. Considering this, the Management of the Company focuses, among
athers, on the fallowings:

- To implement the Co-generation Scheme of CPP: As per the reguirements of Bangladesh Energy
Regulatory Commission (BERC), we have projected to implement the Co-generation Scheme of
Captive Power Plant {CPP} in our factory, which was supposed to implement last vear [2019-2020).
But unfortunately we couldn't implement the same due to COVID-19 pandemic and other
constraints, as it is a highly expensive project.

- To Introduce new products: To meet up the growing and changing demand of customers, we will
introduce new innovative products in our product lines.

- To Introduce self-packaging system: We will introduce the packaging systern in our plant to reduce
the dependency on the supgpliers.

= To increase the production and storage capacity: To cope with the increasing demand, we are to
enhance the production and storage capacity of the plant.

For and on behalf of the Management

= L
(Riad Mahmud)
Managing Director




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
For the year ended 30 June 2020

In line with the best practices of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors of National Polymer
Industries Ltd. has re-constituted the Audit Committee as per the BSEC Motification Mo,
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018 adopted by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission [BSEC).

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of National Polymer Industries Ltd, is comprised of the following members;

Name of Members Position
Mr. Mohammed Ariful Islam, Independent Directar Chairman
Mr. Muruzzaman Khan, ICB Nominated Director Member
Mr. Raguibul Alam, Independent Director Member

The Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance attend the meeting by
invitation. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year ended on June 30, 2020 the Committee met four times. The proceedings of the Audit
Committee Meetings were reported regularly to the Board of Directors. The details of attendance of
the Audit Committee Members have been shown below:

Mame of Members No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Mohammed Ariful Islam 4 4
Independent Director
Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan 4 4
ICE Nominated Director
Mr. Raquibul Alam 4 2
Independent Director

The Member who could not attend the meetings was granted leave of absence.

ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committes acts as the sub-committee of the Board. The Committes supports the Board in
fulfilling its responsibllities more efficiently, The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

# Dwversee the financial reporting process;

=  Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

#  Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it s adegquately resourced,
including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Intermal
Mudit amd Compliance Report;

# Owverses hiring and performance of external auditors;

# Hold meeting with the external auditors for reviewing the annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

# Review along with the Management, the annual and the quarterly financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

= Review the adequacy of internal audit function;
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Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report;
Review the statement of all related party transactions submitted by the Management;

* Review the Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by
statutory auditors;

*  Oyersee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise
deploved and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external
auditors; and

=  Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering {IF0) or Repeat Public
Offering (RPO) of Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in
relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
The Audit Committee carried out the following activities during the year ended on June 30, 2020;
Regulatory Compliance:

The Committee reviewed whether the Company’s procedures, rules and regulations are in
place to ensure compliance with -

# The laws and regulations framed by the Regulatory Authorities.
& Internal rules and regulations approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial Reporting:

The Committee assisted the Board of Directors and the Management In carmying out their
responsibilities in preparing true and fair financial statements in accordance with the books
of accounts and Bangladesh Accounting Standards by:

= reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal contral system and procedures
in order to provide reasonable assurance that all transactions are recorded accurately and
completely in the books of accounts.

# reviewing the integrity of the process by which financial statements are prepared from
the books of accounts.

# reviewing the process by which provisions of Bangladesh Accounting Standards are
complied.

The Committee also reviewed the guarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the
Company before submission to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Committee reviewed that the Company's internal control system is sound in design which gives
reasonable assurance that the Company's resources are safeguarded and the financial position of the
Company |5 well managed, The Committee is of the view that the internal control procedures are
adequate to present a true and fair view of the activities and financlal status of the Company.

INTERMAL AUDIT

The Committee reviewed:
# theinternal audit plans and programs, along with the resources requirements for the year,
# the performance of the internal audit functions.
& the internal avdit system of the Company focusing on its effectiveness in influencing the
performance and compliance with professional standards,
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EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee met with the External Auditors to exchange their views on the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2020. The Committee reviewed the findings and
recommendations made by the External Auditors.

The Committee reviewed the annual financial statements of the company for the year ended on June
30, 2020 audited by Mahfel Haque and Co., Chartered Accountants and recommended to place the
same before the Board for consideration and adoption.

The Committee also reviewed the professionalism, past records and professional fees of the new
External Auditors M/s. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants and recommended to place
before the Board for their appeintment.

REVIEW MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Audit Committee reviewed the Management's Discussion and Analysis prepared in line with the
BSEC'S guidelines and recommended to disclosa the same In the Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Audit Committee expressed its sincere thanks to the Members of the Board, Managemeant Team
and the Auditors for their support and cooperation in carrying out its duties and responsibilities
effectively.

For and on behalf of the Audit Committes

——+q\.=-—--fl

(Mohammed Ariful Islam)
Chairman




NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) REPORT
For the year ended 30 June 2020

In compliance with the BSEC's Motification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80, dated June 03,

2018, the Board of Directors of National Palymer Industries Ltd, has constituted the Nomination and
Remumneration Committee.

COMPOSITION OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Mormination and Remuneration Committes of National Polymer Industries Ltd. is comprised of the
following members:

Name of Members Position
Mr. Raguibul Alam, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Nuruzzaman Ehan, ICB Nominated Director Member
Mr. Golam Murshed, Chairman of the Company Member

Senior member(s) of the company may also attend the meeting by invitation only as and when necessany.
The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes,

MEETING OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUMNERATION COMMITTEE

Dwring the year ended 30 June 2020 the Momination and Remuneration Committee held two meetings.
Proceedings of the Momination and Remuneration Committes meetings were reported to the Board of
Directors. The details of attendance of the Mominaticn and Remuneration Committee Members have
been shown below:

No. of Meetings
Name of Members No. NH'::.""“ Attended
fdr. Raquibul Alam, Independent Cirector 2 2
Pr. Muruzzaman Khan, ICE Mominated Director 2 2
fr. Golam Murshed, Chairman of the Company 2 2

ROLE OF THE NOMIMATION AND REMUMNERATION COMPMITTEE
Major responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:

* Recommend a policy on Board's diversity taking intc consideration of age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

» Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the
Directors and the Top Level Executives;

* |dentify persons who are qualified to become Directors and Top Level Executives in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to
the Board;

* Formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of the Independent Directors and the
Board;

o Assess that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate suitable Directors to run the company successfully;

s Evaluate that the remuneration to directors, top level executives involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the company and its goals;

e Identify the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;
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s  Review annually the company’s human resources and training policies; and

* Recommend the Code of Conduct for the Chairman of the Board, other Board Members and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

APPOINTMENT CRITERIA AND QUALIFIACTION

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, gualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Director, Top Level Executive and recommend to the Board for appointment.

The Committee is responsible to ensure that the procedures for appointing new directors are transparent.
A combination of age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background, nationality and other
relevant personal attributes in the Board is important in providing a range of perspectives, insights and
challenges needed to support right decision making. Recruitment and selection processes for Board
Members identify candidates with the most suitable skills, knowledge, experience and personal values.

EVALUATION

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board. The
MRC is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Board. The evaluation includes a review of the
administration of the Board and its Committees covering their operations, agenda, reports and
information formed for consideration and relationship with the Management.

TOP LEVEL EXECUTIVES SELECTION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of its Directors and Top Level Executives. For
sustainable development, the Company must attract, motivate and retain highly skilled executives, The
recruitment process for the top level executives shall be transparent.

The objective of remuneration policy is to secure that reward for Top Level Executives shall contribute to
attracting, engaging and retaining the right employees to deliver sustainable value for the Shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Momination and Remuneration Committee expressed sincere thanks to the Chairman and the
Members of the Board and the Management for their support in carrying owt its duties and
responsibilities

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

ST

{Raquibul Alam)
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committes




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance s the system of rules, practices, and processes by which a company is governed.
Corporate governance clearly defines the rights and responsibilities of the Board of Directors,
Management, shareholders and other stakeholders, As good corporate governance is the maost valuable
asset of @ company, MNational Polymer Industries Ltd, believes in the continuous improvement of
corporate governance. The Board of Directors and the Management Team of the company is commitied
to maintaining the effective corporate governance through a culture of accountability and transparency.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of National Polymer Industries Ltd,, appointed by the Shareholders in the Annwual
General Meeting [AGM), comprises of five members including two Independent Directors. All Directors
have sound academic and professional knowledge. They are well conversant with corporate governance.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DHRECTOR

Mational Polymer Industries Ltd. has appointed two Independent Directors, who are approved by the
Shareholder in the Annual General Meeting. In selecting the Independent Directars, the Company always
looks for individuals who possess experience, strong inter-personal skill and independence, as specified
in the BSEC's corporate governance code, Independent Directors are considered to be Independent and
free from any business or other relationship with the company that could affect the exercise of their
independent judgment. The Board believes that their experience and knowledge assist in providing both
effective and constructive contribution to the Board.

KEY FEATURES OF THE BOARD

All Board Members are Non-executive Directors, excepting the Managing Director.

- Separation of the role of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director/CED,
Mo Independent Director have served more than two terms (slx years),

Chairman of the Audit Committee and NRC are Independent Directors.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors, accountable to the Shareholders, is responsible for ensuring that the business
activities of the company are soundly administrated and effectively controlled. The Directors keep
themselves informed about the Company’s financial position. The Board ensures that Company's policies
& procedures and the codes of conduct are well understood, implemented and maintained at all levels
and the Company adheres to the generally accepted principals for good governance and effective control
of its activities.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The position of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director are held by two different
persons, The roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing Director are defined clearly.
The Chairperson leads the Board and is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Board and its
Eovernance processes, while the Managing Director serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the company.

COMPANY SECRETARY, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT & COMPLIANCE

Az per the Corporate Governance Code issued by the BSEC, the Company has appointed the Company
Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit & Compliance, who perform their
respective roles and responsibilities as follows:
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ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed a Company Secretary, who has a vast experience in the field of corporate
and compliance issues. Among other functions, the Company Secretary:

bridges between the Board of Directors and the Shareholders on strategic and statutory decision.
is responsible for ensuring that appropriate Board procedures are followed,

Is responsible to provide all permissible Information to the Shareholders,

ensures the compliance of the Acts, rules, regulations, notifications, guidelines, orders/directives
ete. issued by the Regulatory Authorities,

ROLE OF THE CHIEF FINANIAL OFFICER

The Company has appointed a Chief Financial Officer, who looks after the overall financial affairs of the
Company, Among other functions, the Chief Financial Officer:

¢ prepares quarterly and annual financial statements in line with the requirements of Accounting
Standards and Financial Reporting Standards

reports financial positicn of the Company to the Board.

makes sure that the financial records of the company are in order.

makes sure that Management has critical decision-making data.

helps the Management to make strategic decisions by playving an active rale in financial analysis
and management.

e pversees the compliance [ssues of the company.

ROLE OF THE HEAD OF INTERMAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE

The Company has appointed the Head of Internal Audit & Compliance, who has a vast experience in the
field of internal audit and compliance, Among other functions, the Head of Internal Audit & Compliance:

prepares annual internal audit plan and gets approval from the Audit Committee.
performs audit and reviews the Internal Auwdit Plan.
=  monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control in the Company.
«  makes recommendations to the Management and the Audit Committee about the improvement
of operational, financial and governance control systems in the Company.
assists the Management in identifying the risks associated with the company,
provides analysis, advice and Information to the Management.
advises the Management on the implementation of controls for new systems/project.

BOARD COMMITTEES:
AUDIT COMMITTEE

MNational Polymer Industries Ltd. has constituted the Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board.
The Audit Committes of the Company is comprised of three members of the Board, including two
Independent Directors and one of them is the Chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee is
responsible to the Board and its duties and responsibilities are clearly set forth in writing. This Committee
assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities with respect to financial reporting, internal control, risk
management, avditing matters and processes of monitoring compliance with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

NOMIATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE {MRC)

MNatlonal Polymer has constituted the Momination and Remuneration Committee {NMRC) as a sub-
committee of the Board. The Committee is comprised of three members of the Board, including one
Independent Director, whao is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee assists the Board in
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formulating the policy with regard to determining qualifications, positive attributes, experlences,
remuneration, mainly for the Directors and the top level executives.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee of Mational Palymer Industries Ltd. headed by the Managing Director, is a
Team comprised of the highly gualified professionals of the Company. The Management Committee Is
responsible for managing and running the day-to-day management of the Company. The Management
Committee serves for the interest of the Company with a view to achieving the sustainable growth of the
company., The members of the Management Committee are jointly accountable for the entire
management of the company and decide on the basic issues of business policy and corporate strategies,

PURCHASE COMMITTEE

The Purchase Committee of the Company is comprised of the experienced executives headed by a senior
most executive. Among others, the fallowings are the main responsibilities of the Purchase Committee:

- Toevaluate the received proposal and find out the effectiveness of each proposal.

= To prepare a report on the basis of evaluation of the purchase proposal with recommendation
and send to the concerned department for obtaining approval from the competent authority.

- Tosupervise the entire procurement activities,

HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

National Polymer Industries Ltd,, as a manufacturing company, always gives priority on health, safety,
security and environmental isswes of the company. The Company has constituted the Safety Committea
headed by the Head of Human Resources Department. The Committee meets regularly to identify,
monitor and implement the matters relating to the health, safety, security and environmental issues of
the company.

INTERMAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

Mational Polymer Industries Ltd. has established the Internal Audit Department comprising of the
experienced and knowledgeable personnel headed by a qualified person. Internal Audit department
regularty conducts audit based on the yearly audit plan. The Internal Audit Team checks, verifles and
reviews the compliance of internal control procedures and other regulatory requirements on regular
basis.

Internal control mechanism is built by the Company’s systems and procedures to reduce the risks of error
and fraud. The internal control system is maintained and reviewed by the internal audit functions and
reported to the Management and the Audit Committee, The Board of Directors ensures sound internal
control system to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the Company’s objectives
in the areas of;

- Effectiveness and efficiency of operatiocns.
= Reliability of financial reporting.
- Compliance with laws and regulations.

ACCOUNTING AND EXTERMNAL AUDIT

The Company prepares its finamcial statements in accordance with the International Accounting
Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Bangladesh, The annual
financial statements are audited by the Company's Statutory Auditor in accordance with Bangladesh
Audit 5tandards, as adopted by the ICAB. The Audit Committes reviewed the financial statements
{quarterly & annual) and updates, with recommendations, to the Board before approval and publication
of the same.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND TRANSPARENCY

Financial staterments prepared by of the Management of the Company in line with the appropriate
Accounting Standards and Financial Reporting Standards and other legislations, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. The financial statements with
comprehensive details are published timely as per the statutory requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk and concern is closely associated to the business, National Polymer Industries Ltd. fallaows the well-
defined risk management processes to mitigate its risk levels. The Board is supported by its Committees
in monitoring and managing the risk issues, The Company develops a culture, practice and structure that
systematically recognizes and addresses future cpportunities whilst managing the adverse effects by
recognizing risks and responding to them properly.

INSIDERS" TRADING

As per securities laws, Mational Polymer has imposed restrictions on trading of its shares by its directors,
employees and other insiders.

CODE OF CUNDUCT

National Palymer has adopted a Code of Conduct for securing good business ethics in all aspects of its
activities. The Code of Conduct is properly communicated to and with all employees and is strictly
required to abide by it. The Code of Conduct is available in the website of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS

National Polymer believes that good governance involves in truthful relation and cooperation among all
stakeholders involved in the Company, including the owners of the Company-the Shareholders. The
Company values the importance of effective communication with its Shareholders. Admissible
information is communicated to the Shareholders regularly through a number of publications through
the year. In accordance with disclosure requirements, the Shareholders of the Company are informed on
regular basis of all major developments that might impact the business of the Company. The Company
has an official website linked with the website of the Stock Exchanges. As per listing regulations of the
Stock Exchange, detailed disclosures are available in the website of the Company at
whwhw. nationalpalymer.net.




Comparative analysis of Key Financial Performance/Information of preceding five years

Figures in Taka
Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2015 2047-2018 2018-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015
Revenus 3,432,056,238 | 3,000,007,744 | 2,366,380,577 | 1,866,687,057 | 1,750,312,097 | 1,707,971741
Gross Prafit 503,184,320 5T, TAT £90 3g7.4559,051 307,753 861 91 563,613 28T 343185
Prafit Before
WFPF & 710,358,293 | 178536519 111,369,664 43,508,107 68,524,201 64,285,001
Taxation
Mat Profit 150,255,924 | 127,207,270 | 79,350,B86 56,741,633 48,545 B58 45,917 858 |
Eamings Per 412 4.5 124 1327 287 318
Ehare
¥ Earnings Per
Share | ) 3.45 165 272 2.40 2.70
Asssts mrent LET3,TI3,E05 | 1826058228  1,629,743,594 | 1245727606 | 1,074,148,77% | 1,091,229,261
Current Assets 2,630,779,173 | 2,353822517  1832,529,413 | 1,507,345,088 | 1245871356 | 1388071317
Total Assats 4,504, 502,778 | 4,180,780,045  3463,273,008 | 2844673653 | 2,320,020,13F | 2475300578
g:'gﬂ“" 3,000,000,000 | 500,000,000 500,000,000 | 500,000,000 | 500,000,000 | 500,000,000
Paid up Capital 364,018,390 | 299113400 | 245,174,920 | 208,312,440 | 170,260,370 | 144,288,450
g;‘:“"’“” 1,309,083,706 | 1165907991  1,062,004,815 | 1,030,197,514 | 885,204,015 | 836,258,157
f‘::f:“ Z567,03BB4E | 225203E054 1,919,205568 | 1,611,959,788 | 1040508321 | 1327756735
T
L..L‘.‘IE" e S4B,E95210 |  G82,449686 401,487,510 | 123,031,377 | 205422787 | 135,800,672
Tatal Liahilithes
& Sharsholdess” | 4504,502,778 | 4,180,780,745 | 3,462,273,008 | 2,844,673,603 | 2,320,020,137 | 2,479,300578
Equity
MaY Per Shane 3587 .98 43.32 5042 &r.86 4,85
* BAY Per Share
[Restated) 11,95 35.51 4200 48,32 54,95
NOCFPS .65 0.22 | 551 2453 11.72 2536
¥ BOCFPS (2.69) irm 20,48 977 31,49
Market Price
Per Share [On 56.60 111.15 89.40 107.00 E3.30 &2.50
A0 June}
15% X% 2% 20 Faly ] 18%

Dl Cash Dividend

[ deu | Stock Dividend | Stock Dividend | Stock Dividend | Stock Dividend | Stack Dividend
::’I:IE“”"‘“ 13.74 26.14 27.62 32.76 28.98 25.92
Currenit Ratio 102 1.04 095 0.ga 118 1.05
Reburn an Equity
(ROE) Ratio 11.48 10.91 7.47 648 497 4,90
Profit Margin
Fiatin. 5% 438 424 335 158 2.78 2.69
& Total Debt -
Euity Ratio 3138 252 2189 168 127 1.56

* With Effect of Bonus Shares
*Deferred Tax Liabisty not considered
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2020

a)  Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties: NfA

b) Directors & Sponsors Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit & Compliance and their spouses and minor children [name-wise details):

.i Mame Pasition Shareholding “’T“"I"""
1 | Mr. Golam Murshed [Eluf;ﬁ:;:;: e " 18,91,420 5.18%
2 | Mr. Riad Mahmud Manaons Drectos acgo) | 1434251 1.93%
3 | Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan {Hum:;tm IcB) 8285283 12.70%
o |ttt T | st | s
5 | Mr. Rohel Mahmud Sponsor 7.26,202 1.99%
6 | Mrs. Razia Sultana Sponsor 1,52,041 0.42%
7 | Mrs. Khaleda Akhand Sponsor 5,069 0.02%
B | Mr. Raquibul Alarm Independent Director Wil .

9 | mr. Mohammed Ariful 1slam Independent Director Mil -

12 | Mr. Md. Abdul Malegue Company Secretary Nil .

13 | Mr, Md, Shawkat Ali Miah FCA Chief Financial Officer Nil -

14 | Mr. Mithun Kanti Das Head “"E';‘::I:::‘:d"t and Nil :

15 | Thelr spouse and minar children - Mil -

Total 15729877 43.11%

c Executives (Top five salaried employees of the com pany, other than the Directors, CEQ, C5%, CFO and
HIAC): Wil

d]  Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more woting interast in the Company [name-wise ditails):

5l No. Mame Sharehaolding Percentage (%)
Mr. Nuruzzaman Khan
1| Director, Nominated by ICB 82,85,283 22.70%
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BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

The number of Board Meetings and attendance by each Director during the financial year 2013-2020 is as

follows:
Mo, of Meetings | No. of Meetings
5l No. Name of Directors Positlon Held Attended
i Mir, Golam Murshed Chalrman G &
2 Mr, Riad Mahmud Managing Director & &
Director
3 blr. Nuruzzaman Ehan {Neminated by ICB) 1 [
Independent

4 kir. Ragquibul Alam Di ) 5] 3

5 kir. Mohammed Ariful Islam Independent & 5
(Joined the Board on D6A820197) Director
bir, Musiafizur Rahman Sharid

6 | (Retired from the Board on '"'i:““”l“:"‘ 5 1
(OEZ01 %)
Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmed Chowdbury

7 | (Retired from the Board on indupendar 6 1
(ESOE2019)




DECLARATION BY CEOQ AND CFO

Date: 21 November 2020

The Board of Directors

MNational Polymer Industries Lid.

Uday Tower [2™ Floor)

Plat Mo, 57-57/4, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1
Dhaka-1212

Subject: Declaration on Financlal Staterments for the year ended on June 30, 2020,
Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition Mo, 1[5)(xod) imposed wide the ~Commission's Motification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/S2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

[1} The Financial Statements of Mational Polymer Industries Limited for the year ended on 20 June 2020
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (145) or International
Fimarncial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from
has been adequately disclosed;

(2] The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

[3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its Financial Statements;

[4) Toensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of intermal
contral and maintenance of accounting records;

[5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
astablished policies and procedures of the Company were cansistently followad; and

[6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a gaing concern,

In this regard, we also certify that: -

{1} We have reviewed the financlal statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020 and that to the best
of our knowledge and bellef:

(a} these statements do not contain any materlally untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(o) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

[ii] There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in wviolation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of
Directors or its memkbers.

Sincerely Yours,

=4 I N

[Riad Mahmud) (Md. Shawlkat Ali Miah, FCA)
Managing Director & Chief Executive officer Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF BAPLC
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CERTIFICATE ON CORFORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

=i R 9=+ O Sl
SHAFIQ MIZAN RAHMAN & AUGUSTINE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AT, JAHARSAE RERTIEY, FLAT R 3340 FLDIOA)

PARTHERS : GEEER FIAD, DHAKA- G1Y, BARGLADNSH

TEL : Gr3a831, fMEN
M0, ABDUR RAHBAN, FCA CEUL : 01T 831300, D552 59500, 11738 0818
AN HUSSAIN AHMED, FCA, . - "'Hm]:;m asr
i, MLEANUR RAMMAK, FCA Emmww e 0o
BUGUSTINE DIPAK KARMAKAR, FTA BN gl com, rvs husn T | Gorel oo
el Date- 3 T OCT M0

CERTIFICATE © PORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Report to the Shareholders of National Polymer Industries Limited on
compliance on the Corporate Governance Code.

We have examined the compliances status to the Corporate Governance Code by
Matlonal Polymer Industries Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2020. This Code
relates to the Motificatfon Mo. BSEC/CMRRCD, 2004-158/ 207 FADMIN/S0 dated 03 June
2018 of the Bangladesh Secwrities & Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code & the responsibility of the
Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation
thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of
the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the
conditiens of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) a5 adopted by Institute of Chartered
secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with
any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have
required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our
opinion:

{a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance
Code as stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued
by the Commission;

{b) The Company has complied with the previsions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (B5S) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
secretaries of Bangladesh (KC5B) as required by this Code;

{c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under
the Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant Laws; and

[d) The Governance of the company & satisfactony.

k\ﬁ'}éﬁﬂkﬂm@”-

Hanaging Partner
SHAFIQ MIZAN RAHMAN & AUGUSTINE
CHARTERED ACCOUMTAMTS

Branch Oics - Easiern Commardial Complee. Sulle # 1205 (1210 Floor) 73 Kekrail, Diwka-1000
Tal : 53546448, Fax : 880-2-8354341, E-mai - mizanB0d5{0gmail.com
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STATUS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No.: BSEC/CMRARCD, 2006
158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 20C of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1963

{Report under Condition No. 9.00):
Compliance Status (Pult v
Condition Title Irrﬂihe qlpl'ﬂpl'lﬂ{'!l Remarks
MNo. Column)
Not (i any)
Complied Comalied
i Board of Directors:
11} Size of the Board of Directors ) J
[Mumber of Board members - minimum 5 and
maximum 20)
12 Independent Directors:
12) {a) At least 15 of the total number of Directors shall be v
Independent Nrectors
1{2)ib) | Independent Director means a Director:
Wh elther does not hold any share in the company d

1(23biiY | or holds less than one percent [1%) shares of the total
paid-up shares of the company,
Who i not a sponsor of the company or is not
connected with the company’s any sponsor of
director or nominated director or sharehalder of the
company of any of its associates, sister concerns,
subsidiaries and parents or holding entitles who holds
12}l ane percant (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up W
shares of the company on the basis of family
relationship and his or her family members also shall
not hold above mentioned shares in the company;
Prondded that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall
be considered as family members;
Who had not been an executive of the company in W
immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years;
Who does not have any other relationship, whether

12Dl

1[2}[b}[iv] | pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its v
subsidiary or associsted companies;
Who is not a member or TREC (Trading, Right v
1(2)[bkw) | Entitlerment Certificate) holder, director or officer of

any stock exchange;
Who is not a shareholder, director excepting

1[2)bhivi) independent director or officer of any member ar W
THEC holder of stock exchange or an Intermadiary of
the capital market;
Wha is not a partner or an executive or was not a
partmer or an executive during the preceding 3 (three)
1[2)(bY[vii} | years of the concerned company's statutory audit W
firm or awdit firm engaged in internal audit services or
audit flrm conducting special awdit or professbonal
certifying compliance of this Code;
U2 bH) | Who ks not indepandent director in more than 5 (five) W
listed companies;
Who has not been convicted by a court of competent
Jurisdiction as a defaulter In payment of any loan or W
any advance to a bank or a Mon-Bank Financial
Institution [NBFI); and
1(2)(bjix) Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence W
irmmodving rmoral turpitude,
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Condition
No.

1(2)ch

Title

The Independent Directoris] shall be appointed by |

the Board and approved by the shareholders In the
Annual General Meeting [AGM];

Compliance Status [Put v
in the appropriate
Column]

Complied c Hmllu:l
v

Remarks
(i any)

1[z)id)

The post of Independent Director(s) cannot remain
wacant for more than 90 [ninety) days;

Mo such
eveEnt
oocurred
im the:
reporting
wrEar

12)(e)

The tenwre of affice of an Independent Director shall
b for a period of 03 years, which may be extended
fior 1 {one) tenure onky;

Provided that a former independent director may ba
considered for re-appointment for another tenure
after a time gap of one tenure, ie. three years from
his ar her completion of consecutive bwo tenures [ie.
six years]

Mo such
avent
aocurred
i thae
reporting

1.3

Qualification of Independent Director:

year

1(3)(a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable
individual with integrity wha is able to ensure
compliance  with  financial  laws, regulatory
requirernents and corporate laws and can rmake
meaningful contribution to the business,

13)ib)

independent Director shall have following qualifications:

REHEI

13NBHI)

Business leader who is or was a promoter or director
of an unlisted cormpany hawing minimum paid-up
capital of Tk, 100,00 million or any listed company or
a membar of any national or international chamber of
cormmerce or business assoclation; or

Corporate Leader who is or was a top lewvel executive l

not lower than Chief Executive officer or Managing
Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or
Company Secretary of Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service ar a candidate
with equivalent position of an unlisted company
havlng minimum pald up capital of Tk, 100,00 million
af of & listed company; ar

1E3 )bl

Former officlal of gowernment or statutory or
autonomous of regulatory body in the position not
below 5% Grade of the national pay scale, who has at
least educational background of bachelor degree in
economics or commerce or business or law; or

M

(3N iV}

Unlwersity Teacher who has educational backgrownd
in Economics of Commence of Business Studies or
Law; or

NS

1{3Hbhv}

Professional who s or was an advocate practicing at
least in the High Court Division of Bangladesh
Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Acocountant of Chartered Financlal
Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent
gualification;

[TILY

1{3)e)

The Independent Director shall have at least 10 (ten)
years of experiences in any field mentioned in clause
(b);
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Compllance Status [Put v R rks

Condition Thie in the appropriate ama

Mo, Colurnin)
Mot [if any)
Complied Complied
Mo such
In special cases, the abowe gualification or event in
1(3)d}  experiences may be relaxed subject to prior appreval the

of the Commission; reporting

1{4)

Year

| Duality of Chalrperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive

afficer:

1{4){a)

The position of the Chairperson of the Board and the
Managing Director {MD] andfor Chief Executive
Officer (CE0) of the company shall be filled by
different individuals;

1i4){o}

The Managing Director {MD) andfar Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) of a listed company shall not hold the
sarme position in another listed company;

1{ahe)

The Chalrperson of the Board shall be elected from
ameng the non-executive directors of the company.

1{4)id])

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing
Director andfor Chiel Executive Officer;

1ig){e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Baard, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves
from non-executive directors as Chairperson for that
particular Boand’s meeting; the reason of absence of
the regular Chalrperson shall be duly recorded In the
minutes;

Mo such
eveEnt
occurred
in the
reporting
year

1{5)

The Directors’ report shall include the following additional statements:

1(5Hi)
(5]

An Industry outlook and possible future development
| in the industry;

The segment-wise or product-wise perfarmance

v

MiA

1iS)iii)

Risk and concerns including internal and external risk
factors, threat to sustainability and negative impact
an environment, if any

1{S)iv]

Margin and Met Profit Margin, where applicable

A discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit

A discussion on continuity of any estracrdinary

N/

1{5Hv) activities and their implications |gain or loss)

1{5)vi)

A detailed discussion on refated party transactions
along with & statement showing amount, nature of
related party, nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions.

1(5){vii}

L(s)wli}

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through
public issues, rights issues andfor any other
instruments

MiA

An explanation if the financial results deterorate
after the company goes for IPO, APD, Rights Share
Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

1{5Hix)

H/A

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs
between Cuarterly Financial performance and &nnawal
Fimanclal Statements.

1{5Hx)

A statement of remuneration pald to the Directors
including Independent Directar;

1{5Hxi)

A staterment that the financial statements prepared
by the managemant of the isswer company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations,

cash flows and changes in eguity;
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status (Put v
In the appropriate
Calum

Mot

Complied Complled

15 ){=ii}

A statement that proper books of account of the
issuer company have been maintained:

L

Remarks
(if amy)

1[5 xii}

A statement that appropriate accownting policies
heve been conslstently applied in preparation of the
financial statement: and that the sccounting
elerments are based on reasonable and prudent

Judgment;

1(5) {xiv}

A staternent that International Accounting Standards
(I&5) or International Financial Reporting Standards
[IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have bean
followed In preparation of the financlal statements
and any departure there from has been adeguately
disclosed;

1i5] {xv}

A statement that the system of internal contral s
spound in deslgn and has been effectively
implemented and monitored;

1(5) {xvi)

A staterent that minorty shareholders have besn
protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest
of, controlling shareholders acting either directhy or
indirectly and kave effective means of redress;

1(5) {aweil)

A staternent that there |s no significant doubt wpon
the issuer company’s ability to continue as an going
concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be
a polng concern, the fact along with reasons there of
shall be disclosed;

1(5) {avili)

An explanation that significant deviations from the

last year's operating results of the issuer company
shall ke highlighted and the reason thereof shall be
explained:

(5] [xix}
1{5} [rexe)

(5] [xxi}

As statement where key operating and financial data
of at |emast preceding 5 (five) years shall be
summarized;

&n explanation an the reasons if the issuer company
hes mot declared dividend {cash or stock) for the year;
Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share
or stock dividend has been or shall be declared as
interim dividend,;

v

H/A

1(5) {xxii}

The total number of Beard Meetings held during the
yaar and attendance by each director;

1(5) {xoxiii)

v

Pattern of shareholding discdosing the aggregate number of shares held by:

[a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated companies and
ather related parties (name-wise details);

N/A

[b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor
children [nama-wise datails);

() Executives; and

(d) Shareholders holding ten percent [10%) or more
voting interest in the company (name-wise details);

1(5) [xxiv)

In case af the appointment or r-appointment of a
information:

[a) a brief resume of the Director;

(b) Mature aof hisfher expertise in specific functional
areas; and

[c) names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the membership of
committees of the Board,
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Co lance Stat Ly
Condition II:'llilzhu- lpprupl:'llltl'.T Remarks
Title
No. mumﬂ] ["-“ﬂ
Mot
Complied Complied

A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEOQ or MD presenting detalled analysis of
1{5) {xorv] | the company's position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
staternents, among others, focusing on:

(a) accounting polices and estimation for
preparation of fimancial statements;

(b] changes in accounting policies and estimaton, if
any, clearly describing the effect on financal
performance or results and financial position as LT
wiell as cash flows in absolute figure for such
changes,

[c] comparative analysis [including effects  of
inflation) of financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows for current L
financial year with Immediate preceding flve
years explalning reasons thereof:

(d] compare such financial performance or results
and financial position as well as cash flows with N A
the peer industry scenario;

(&) briefly axplain the financal and econamic
scenario of the country and the globe;

(f] risk and concerns issues related to the financal
statements, explaining swch risk and concerns v
mitigation plan of the compary;

(gh future plan or projection or forecast for
company’s operation, performance and financial
position, with justification thereof, ie., actual L)
position shall be explained to the shareholdersin
the next AGM,

Declaration or certificatian by the CEQ and the CFO to
1(5) (xuwi) | the Board 25 required under condition No, 3|3} shall W
be disclosed as per Annexune-&

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance

1(5) of conditions of this Code as required under condition
(il Mo, 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and
Annesure-£.

1i) Meeting of the Board of Directors:

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and
record the minutes of the meetings as well as keep
required books and records in line with the provisions
of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards ¥
(B55) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of
this Cosde,

17 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer:

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commities [MRC) at conditlon Ne, &
U7M3) | for the Chairperson of the Board, cther Board
members and Chief Executlve Officer of the

Company.
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Compliance Status [Put ¥

Condition Tide in the appropriate Remarks
No. Eﬂhl‘l‘lh]m (i any)
Complied Complied
The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall
be posted an the website of the company including, Pasted an
among others, prudent conduct and behavior; the
1|71k} | confidentiality; conflict of interest; compliance with v wihsite of
laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider the
trading; relationship with emvironment, employees, company
customers and suppliers; and independency.
2 Governance of the Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company:
Prowisian relating to the compasition of the Board of
3(al Directors of the holding company shall be made /A
applicable to the compositdon of the Board of the
subsidiary company;
At least 1 (One) independent director on the Board of
2(b) the halding company shall be a director on the board MR
af the subsidiary comparny;
The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary
2ic) company shall be placed for review at the following NSA

Board meeting of the holding company;

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the
2{d) halding campany shall state that they have reviewsed NfA
the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

The Audit Committes af the holding company shall
2(e) also review the financial statemants, in particular the MN/A
Investments made by the subsidlary company

Managing Director [MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CED), Chief Financial Officer (CFO}, Head
of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (C5):
The Baard shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or
3(1Ha) Chief Exacutive Officer (CEQY, a Company Secretary
[C5), & Chiel Financial Officer {CFO) and & Head of
Internal Awdit and Compliance {HIAC);
The position of the Managing Director (MD] or Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ), Company Secretary (C5),
3(10k} | Chief Financial Officer [CFO) and Head of Internal v
Audit and Compliance (HIAC] shall be filled by
different indhviduals;
The MD or CEQ, 5, CFD and HIAC of a listed company
M) shall mot hold any executive position in any other v
company at the same time;
The Board shall clearly deflne respective roles,
A1) responsibilities and duties af the CFO, the HIAC and )
the C5.
The MD ar CEQ, (5, CFO and HIAC shall not be
3(1)le) remowed from their position without approval of the
Board as well as Immediate dissermination to the
Commission and stock exchange(s).
3H2) Regquirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meeting:-
The MD or CEQ, C5, CFO and HIAC of the Company
shall attend the mestings of the Board;
Provided that the €5, CFO andfor the HIAC the
company shall not attend such part of a meeting of
the Board which invohmes cansideration af an agenda
itern relating to their personal matters,
33) Duties of the Ma ng Director or Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer;
3(3Ha} The MD ar CECQ and the OFO shall certify to the Board v
that they have reviewad financial statements for the
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Compllance Status (Put v

Condition in the appropriate Remarks
Title col
No. | Column)
Mot (if any]
Complied
Complied
year and that to the best of their knowledge and
belief:
(I} these statements do not contain any materiality
UrRtrue statement of amit any material fact oF eontain W
statements that might be misleading; and
(1i) these statements together present a true and falr
view of the company's affairs and are in compliance v

with existing accounting standards and applicable

lanws;

The MD or CED and the OFO shall certify that there

arg, to the best of knowledge and belief, no

3[3}b) transactions entered into by the company during the v
year which are fravdulent, lllegal or Inviolation of the

code of conduct for the company's Board o its

members.

The certification of the MD or CEOQ and the CFO shall

3(3)c) be disclesed in the Annual Report v
4 Board of Directors’ Committes:
Far ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-
commithees:
i) Audit Committes; and i)
A} Momination and Remuneration Committes, k)
5 Audit Commitbes
Sii) Responsibility to the Board of Directors
5[1}al The company shall have an Audit Committes as a sub- v
committee of the Board;
The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true
S{1}b) and falr wlew of the state of affalrs of the company L)
and in encuring a good monitoring system within the
business;
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
s(1)ic) Board; the duties of the Audit Committee shall be W

clearly set forth in writing.
5(2) Constitution of the Audit Committes:
5[2}al The Audit Committes shall be composed of at least 3 v
[three) members;
The Boward shall appoint members of the Audit
5{21b) Committea who shall be not-executive directors of
the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and
shall include at least 1 (one] independent director;
All members of the Auwdit Committes should be
5(2)lc) “financlally [terate” and at least 1 {one) member shall
have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;
When the term of service of any committee member
expires or there s any circumstance causing any
committes member to be unable to hald office bafore Ma such
expiration of the term of sendice, thus making the event
number of the committee members to be lower than OTCUrTE
S{2Md) | the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the d during
Board shall appoint the new committes member o e
fill up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 repartin
[one} month from the date of vacancy in the E year
committes to ensure continuity of the performance
of work of the Audit Committes;
The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of v
the Committes;
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Compliance Status [Put v
im the appropriate
Calumn

Caondition Remarks

Title

Complied

Mok
Complled

[If any)

S(2)if

The guarum of the Audit Committee meeting shall
nat constitute without at least 1 (ane) independent
director,

v

5(3)

Chairperson of the Audit Committes:

S(3Ha)

The Board shall select 1 jone) member of the Audlt
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit
Committes, who shall be an inda ent direchor;

{3k

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committes, the remaining membears may elect one of
themselves as Chalrperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of
continuing a guorum as required under condition Mo,
S[4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular
Chalrpersan shall be duly recarded In the minutes.
Chairpersan of the Awsdit Committee shall remain
present in the Annual General Meaeting (AGM);

Mo such
avent
occurred
during the
reporting
year

5{3)le)

Provided that in absence of Chairparson of the Awsdit
Committee, any other member from the Audit
Committes shall be selected to be present in the
annual general meeting [AGM] and reason for
absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGRM.

Mo sech
SRERL
occurrad
during the
reporting
year

5(a)

Meeting of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Cornmittes shall conduct at least its four
meatings in a financial year;

S{4Hal

Provided that any emergency meeting in addithon to
regular meeting may be comvened at the request of
any one of the members of the Committes;

Mo such
eyvent
aecurred
during the
reporting
VeSS

S(4NE)

The guorum of the meeting of the Audit Committes
shall be constituted in presence of either two
maembers or two third of the members of the Audit
Committes, whichever is higher, where presence of
an independent director is a must

| S5{5) |
S{5Ha)

Role of the Audit Committes:

Dbsenve the financial reporting process;

S{5){s}

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles ;

S{5}(e)

S5}
5(51{e)

5(5)if)

Monltor Internal audit and compllance process to
ensure that it is adequately resourced, including
approval of the Internal Awdit and Compliance Plan
and review of the Internal Awdit and Compliance
Report;

Chwerses hirng and performance of external auditors;

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors
for review of the annual financial statements before
subrmission to the Board for approval or adoption;
Review along with the management, the annwsal
financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

S{5He)

Review along with the management, the quarterly
and hall  yearly financial swatements before
submission to the Board for approval;

{3}t

Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

S{5H)

Review the Managerment's Discusslon and Analysis

before disclosing in the Annual Report;
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status [Put v
in the appropriate
Column)

Remarks

Complied

Mok
Complied

[if ary)

SUSHI)

Rewiew statement of all related party transactions
submitted by the management;

v

5{5Mk)

Review Management Letters or Letter of Intermal
Control weakness issuad by statutory auditors;

S4SHI)

N/A

Overser the determination of audit fees based on
scope and magnitede, level of expertise deployed and
tirme required for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external awditors; and

5{5)(m)

Overses whether the proceeds raised throwgh Initial
Public Offer (IPD) or Repeat Pulblic Offering (RPO) ar
Rights Share Offer hawe been wtilized as per the
purposes stated in relevant offer decument ar
prospectus approved by the Commission;

Mo suech
event
oecurred
during the
reporting
year

5(6)

Reporting of the Audit Commities:

5(6){a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors:

sisNalii

The Auwdit Committee shall report on its activities to
the Board

v

5(6){a)(ii}

The Audit Committee shall iImmedlately report to the Board on the f

‘ollowing findin

gs, If ariy:-

{a] report on conflict of interests;

HfA

{b) suspected or presumed fraud or iregularty or
material defect identified in the internal audit and
compliance process arin the financial statements;

{e) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory
compliances including securities related |aws, rules
and regulations; and

{d) Amy other matter which the Audit Committes
deems necessary shall be disclosed to the Board
immediately.

S(E){b)

Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Committes
has reported to the Board about anything which has
material impact on the flnanclal condition and results
of aperation and has discussed with the Board and
the management that amy rectification is necessary
and if the Audit Committee finds that such
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the
Audit Cormmittes shall report swuch finding to the
Cammisdion, upon reporting of such matters to the
Board for three times or completion of a pericd of &
(512} manths from the date of first reporting toe the
Board, whichever is earlier.

5(7)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors: Report on activities carried out by the
Audit Committee, incleding any report made to the
Board under condition Mo, 5(B){a){ii) above during the
year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Awdit
Committes and disclosed in the annual report af the
issuEr company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

El1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors:

B(1] a}

The company shall have & Momination and
Rermuneration Committes [NRC) a5 a sub-committes
of the Board:

B(1) (&}

The MRC shall assist the Board in formulation the
nominatlon criteria or policy for determining
qualifications, poditive attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top lewel executive as
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Compllance Status [Put v
Conditian in the appro Rarvearis
No. Title Column
Complied Mok 0t sewd
Complied
will as a policy for formal process of considering
remuneration of directors, top level executives;
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be
G{1) lch clearly sat forth in writing covering the areas stated at L)
the condition Mo. B{5]{&)
B(2} Constitution of the NRC:
6(2)(a) The Committes shall comprise of at least three v
mermbers Including an independent directos;
52)(b) Al members of the committes shall be non-executive ¥
directors;
6(2)ic) rMembers of the Committes shall be neminated and ¥
appointed by the Board:
S2d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint ¥
any member of the Committes;
In case of death, resignation, disqualification or Ma tu,lm
removal of any member of the Committes or any acourred
&l2h=) other cases of vacancies, the Board shall fill the during the
wvacancy within 180 days of occcurring such vacancy in "EI
the Committes; E” ng
The Chairpersan of the Committes may appoint or co- N ch
opt any external expert andfor memberis] of staff to 9 :u1
the Committes as advisor who shall be non-woting occurred
Gl2NA member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or during the
suggestion from such external expert andfor ':In
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for reporting
the Committee; year
8(2)(g) The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of y
the Committee;
The quarum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute
&l2)(h) without attendance of at least an independent ]
directar;
Mo member of the MAC shall receive, either directly or
8(2)1i) indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or v
eontultancy role or atherwise, other than Directar’s
fees or honorarium from the company.
B(3] Chalrperson of the NRC:
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NREC to
Gl3)a) be the Chairperson of the Commities, who shall be an L)
independent director;
In the absence of the Chairpersan of the NRC, the No 'ulm
53)(b) remaining members may elect ane af themiehes as acourred
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of during the
absence of the regular Chairpersan shall be duly 'gln
recorded in the minutes; ::': E
The Chairperson of the MRC shall attend the anmual
general meeting (AGM] to answer the gueries of the W
sharehalders;
Provided that in absence of Chalrperson of the MRC, Mo such
B(3)ic} | any other member from the NRC shall be selected to event
be present in the annual general meeting (AGM] for oecurred
answering the sharehoider's queries and reason for during the
absence of the Chairperson of the NREC shall be reparting
recorded in the minutes of the AGM. yaar
G(d) rieeting of the NRC:
B(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a v
financial yaar;
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Condition
[ [8

Title

Compliance Status (Put ¥
in the appropriate
Column}

Cormplied

Remarks

ot (if any)
Complied

6{4){b)

The Chairperson of the MRC may cofvens any
emergency meeting upon reguest by any member of
the MRC;

v

&{4){c)

6(4){d}

The guerum of the meeting of the MRC shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or
two third of the members of the Committes,
whichever is higher, where presence of an
independent director s must as reguired wnder
condition Mo. 6(2){R};

The proceedings of each meeting of the NAC shall
duly be recorded in the minutes and such minutes
shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRLC.

6(5)

Role of the NRC:

&{5}(a]
6{5){b)

NRC shall e independent and responsible or
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders.
NRC shall cbserve, among others, the followi
recommendation to the Board:

&(5)(Bb) 1)

nE

and make report with

Formulating the  criterdia  for  determining
gualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend a policy to the Board,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, top
level executive, considering the following:

[a}) the level and compositon of remuneration ks
responsible and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate sultable directors to run the company
suceassiully;

[b] the relationship of remuneration to parformance
is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmarks; and

[c] remuneration to directors, top level axecutive
involves a balance between fived and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-terrm  performance
objectives appropriate to the werking of the company
and its goals;

&(5)(b) {il)

6(51E]
i)

Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into
consideration age, gender. experience, ethnicity,
educational background and natlcnallty;

identifying persons who are gualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive positlon in accordance with the criverla lald
down, and recommend their appointment and
rermowval o the Board:

&(5){b]
()

&(E)(b] {v)

Formulating the criteria  for  evaluation of
performance of independent directors and the Board;
Identifying the company's needs for employeeas at

different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacemant and promotion criteria; and

6(5){)
{wi)

Developing, recommending and reviewing annually
the company’s human resources and tralning policles.

&{5)ic)

i

The company shall disclose the nomination and
remuneration policy and the evaluation criveria and
activities of MRC during the year at a glance in Its

annual report.
External or Statutory Auditors:

1)

The isswer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following

services of the company, namely:

LY

Appraisal or valuation services or falmess cpinions; |

L)
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Condition
Mo

Title

Compliance Status (Putv |
in the appropriate Remarks

Column} - {if any]

L

TN

Financial  Information  systems  design and
implementation;

v

(i)

Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statements;

7(1}iv)
7{1}){v)

Broker-dealer services;
Actuarial services;

7(L}[)

Internal audit services or special awdit services;

(1 )wii)

Any service that the Audit Committee determines;

L IERE R

F(1)4vill)

Audit or certification services on compliance of
corporate governance as required under condition
Mo. 3{1); and

=

(1) (i}

Any other service that creates conflict of interest;

7(2)

Mo partner or employees of the external audit firms
shall possess any share of the company they audit at
least during the tenure of their audit assignment of
that company; his or her family members also shall
not hold any shares im the said company;

T(3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall
remain present in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual
General Meeting or Extraordinary General Mesting)
to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company:

8(1)

The company shall have an official website linked with
the website of the stock exchange,

8(2)

The company shall keep the website functional from
the date of listing.

8(3)

The company shall make available the detailed
disclosures on its website as required under the listing
regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).

Reporting and Compliance of Corparate Gowvernance:

(1)

The company shall obtein a certificate from a
practicing Professional Accountant of Secretary
(Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its
statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of the Commission and shall such
certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

9(2)

9(3)

The professional who will provide the certificate on
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall
be appointed by the shareholders im the annual
general meeting,

The directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in the
directors’ report whether the company has complied
with these conditions or not.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL POLYMER INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of National Polymer Indusities Limited {the “Company™), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, and along with the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and
oiher explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements is present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
posifion of the Company as al 20 June 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the vear
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {I[FR.Ss).

Basis for (hpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (TSAs), Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditors" Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Slatements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ithe
International Ethics Standards Board for dccowntants ' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis (IESBA
Code), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB) Bve Laws, We believe that the asdit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to
provide a hasis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our ional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statemenis of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do ool provide a separate opinion on these matlers.

1. Revenue Recognition
Risks

Dur Response to the Risks

At vear end the company reported tofal revenue
of BDT 3,43,29, 56,238,

Revenwe is generated from both Local and
export sales. In which, VAT is applicable only
on local sales. Therefore, calculation of VAT
return is required for identifying local sales.

Sales recognized based on export sales made
during the year is material and considered to be
complex and judgmental. Therefore, there 1= &
risk of revenue being misstated as a result of
faulty estimations over discounts, incentives
and rebates,

There 15 also a rsk that revenue may be
overstated due to fraud through manipulation of
the discounts, incenbives amd rebates
recognized resulting from the pressure local
management may feel to achieve performance
targets.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls focusing on the following:

» Calculation of discounts, incentives and rebates;

# Sepregation of doties in inwodice creation and
maodification; and

& Timing of revenue recognition.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue
recognition comprises the following:

# Obtaining supporting  documentation  for  sales

transactions recorded either side of vear end as well as
credit notes issued after the year end date to determine

whether revenpe was recognized in the cormect period;

+ Within a number of ithe company's markels,
comparing current year rebate accruals to the prior year
and, where relevant, completing further inquiries and
testing.
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[See note 26,00 fo the financial statemenits]

s Apgrecing a sample of claims and rebate accruals to
supporiing documentation;

» Critically assessing manual journals posted to revenue
to identify unusual or irregular items; and

» Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

2, Erxistence and Valoation of Inventories

Risks
The company had inventories of BDT
1,23 41 67895 at 30 June 2020, held m
warghouses,
Inventory value is measured at the lower of
cost and nel realizable value. As a resuli, the
Directors apply judgment in determining the
appropriate values for value in use and working
PTOErEss,
The provision of Waork in Progress is calculated
within the company’s sccounting systems wsing
an automated process, Where local systems
require manual interfaces and inputs, there is a
risk thal inappropriate management override
and/or error may eoour,
[See note 7.00 to the financial statements|

Our Response to the Risks

We challenged the appropriatencss of management's
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
inventory provisions by

» gvaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory cofitrols  operating across  the company,
including those at a sample of distribution centers,
warchouses and branches;

« gomparing the net realizable value, obtained through a
detailed review of sales subseguent to the vear-end, to
the cost prce of a sample of Inventories and companson
to the associated provision to assess whether inventory
provisions are complete; and

* challenging the compleieness of inventory provisions
through assessing actual and forecast sales of inventory
lines to assess  whether provisions for  slow-
moving/obsolete stock are valid and complete.

3, Management®s consideration of the
potential impact of COVID-19

Risks

Our Response to the Risks

Management has made estimates and
judgments that there was basically no adverse
irmpact of COVID-1% on the company.

In doing so, management have made estimales
and judgments that are critical (o the culcomes
of these considerations with particular focus on
the group’s ability (o continee a8 a Eoing
concern for a period of at least 12 months from
the date of the signing of the financial
slatements.

As a result of the impact of COVID-19 on the
wider financial markeis we have determined
management’s consideration of the potential
impact of OOVID-19 (incloding their
associated estimates and judgments) to be a key
audit matter.

= We obfained management’s most recent financial
results forecasts and houidity analysis underlying
their going concern assessment and tested the
integrity of the forecasts, including mathematical
ACCUTACY.

= We challenged management on the key assumptions
included in the scenarios and we subjected
management’s most recent forecasts to additional
stress testing to confirm thet both management and
the Board have considered a balanced range of
outcomes in their assessment of the potential inpact
of COVID-19,

Based on our procedures, we have not identified any

matters to report with respect to both management’s and

ihe Board's considerations of the pobential impact of

COVID-19 on the current and future operations of the

COMpany.
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Reporting on other Information

Management iz responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
in the Anmual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Annual Report
is expecied o be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Owr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conmection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so0, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the andit or otherwise
appears to be matenially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the
Company in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note 1 to 3 and for such internal control as management
determines s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thoze charped with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s [nancial reporling process.
Aupditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always defect & material misstaternent when it exisis. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatemnent resulting from fravd is higher than for one resulting from error, 25 frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

# Obiain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the cifcumstances.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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# Conclude on the appropriateness of managemvent’s wse of the poing concern basiz of accounting and,
based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast sipnificant doubt on the Company”s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our andifor’s
report to the related disclosures in financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained wp to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may canse the Company to cease to continug as
a going concerm.

» Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incleding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

# Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities fo express an opinion on the financial statemenis. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the andit. We remain solely responsible for our andit

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable

laws and regulations, we also report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereol;

(i1} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

(i) the Company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of
account and refums; and

(1v) The expenditure incurred, except as noted above, were to the purpose of company business,

Py d .

Md. Abdus Satter Sarkar, FCA
For and on behalf of,

Dihaka, 29 October 2020 Mahifel Hug & Co.
Chartered Acconntants




Mational Polymer Industries Limited
Siaternemt of Financial Position

A at 30 June 2020

Purticulurs Noles Amsount i Taka
30 June 2020 || 30 June 2019

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 4 1,569,552,476 1,629,304 214
Iswveatmerl 5 250,913,538 117,577,625
Capital Waork in Progress (CWI1F) [ 53,257 593 79,886,359
Total Non-Cuorrenl Assels 1,873,723 605 1,826 858 228
Current Assets _ _
Invertorics 7 1,234, 167,895 1,081,447 816
Accpunts Receivablea ] T31 480 984 510,673,198
Accrued Interest Receivahle on FDR 9 3,127 865 Q36,612
Advance, Deposil & Pre-payments 1l 131,080,152 191,552,211
Advance Incame Tax 1 264,275,136 368,005 204
Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 261 A31K, 140 200,317 476
Total Current Assets 2.630,779,173 2,353,922 517
TOTAL ASSETS 4,504,502, 778 4,180, 750,745
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders Equity & Reserves
Share Capital 13 364,918,340 299,113,400
Shane Premiom 14 134,000,000 134,000,000
Revaluation Reserve 15 496,260,922 496,260,922
Retained BEarnings 16 313,004 444 236,533,665
Total Sharcholders Equity & Reserves 1,309,083, 706 1,165,907 991
NMon-Current Liabilitics
Long Term Loan - (Mon-Current Maturity) L7 548,895,210 682 440 686
Deferred Tax Liability 18 T 485,014 T 483,014
Total Non-Corrent Liabilitics 628 IR0, 224 T61,934, 700
Current Liabilities
Short Term Loan 1% 1,735,8K2,726 1,572,712,365
Lang Term Loan. {Current Maturity) 17 302,996,089 261,370,924
Bank Overdrafi 0 311,260,225 215,199 482
Accounts Payable 21 34,532,631 9,656,741
Inter-Company Loan Iz 51,900,313 ADL019, 004
Provision for Expenses 3 27.5962,071 36, 199993
WPPF & Welfare Fund 24 10,017,062 A.926,826
Provigion for Taxation 2% 487,731 R32.719
Total Current Liabilities 2567 03 848 2252 9318 054
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 4.504,502,778 4, 180, TB0, 745
Met Asset Value (MAY) Per Share 34 I5.KHT 31.95

Chairrnam Minnaging Director Campany Secretary
Sigmed in terms of our separate report of even dabe anmexed
Py d .
Mahiel Hog & Co.
Dihalka, 25 Cytober 2020 Chartered Accountanis

© ANNumLmeeoRTaois200 PaGEss



Mational Polymer Industries Limited
Statemnent of Profit or Loss and Others Clomprehensive Income

For the vear ended 30 June 2020
Particulars Notes Amount In Taks
A June 2020 || 30 June 2019
Revenue 26 3,435,955;33" 3,000,007,744
Cost of Goods Sold 27 {2,830,771,919) (2,442,220,045)
Gross Profit 602,184,320 537,787,699
Adminsirative, Selling and Disiribution Expenses: 28
Administrative Expenses 142,1:45,5?' 133,008,798
Selling and Distribution Expenses 50,051,058 73,261,010 |
(201,998,634) (206,269,808)
Profit from Operations 400,185,686 351,517,891
Crther Income 29 20,726,731 11,970,133
Forelgn Exchange Gain/(Loss) 30 (2,053,928) {1,681,397)
Financial Fxpenscs il (208,500,195) {183,270,108)
Profit before WPPF & Taxation 210358293 178,536,519
WPPF and Welfare Fund a2 {10,017,062) (8,026,826)
Provision for Taxation 33 {50,085,308) {42,402,423)
Met Profit for the year 150,255,924 127,207,270
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss): - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 150,155,924 127,207,270
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPFS) 34 4,12 349
The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

toaxe =4 L T I

Chairman Managing Director Company Secrotary

Signesd mn terms of our separate report of even date annexed

Mltrryd .

Mahfel Hug & Co.
Dhaka, 29 October 2020 Chartered Accountanis




Mational Folymer Indmstries Limibed

Samemeat of Changes o Equity
For the year nded 10 Juse 2000
Amaunt in Taks
Particulars Share Capital | Share Premimm | oo | Retained Earnings Tatal
Balunce as aif | July 201% 2001 A 134 S ADE RO 0ET D6, 505 450 1165 9T 09]
Paymend of Siock Dévidesd (2018-2019 FY, Noie -13) 65,304,940 165,304,540} -
Tex Adpastest against essessment
{2017-201R FY, Mate -16) - (7,080,206 (10802094
Profit Earmed dering the yer - - - 150,255 524 | 50255 924
(Teeal LA L4000 0o te 1L SILN A ] LM e
Amaunt in Taks
Far the yrar mded 30 June 2413 Share Capital | Share Premlum Readutha | o oo Earaings Tutal
Falance as at | July 2018 245,174,920 134,000,000 406,260,972 196,650,074 | 10GLI4916
Paymend of Siock Dividesd (20172015 FY, Noie -13) 431,538 480 {53,538 480}
Tem Adjustroest: against ssesamemt
{2016-2017 FY, Note -16) - @I4005N (304105
£TuﬁtEl.‘|:ld thering e war - - - 127,207,270 12T 20T 270
Tatsl 20011 LA 1.3 ), i) b b AT A6 A0 sa0 11 G5 MIT 0]

The smnenca’ naver fare an ffogral por of these Finascis Sanement

=4 I

Rearca i [

t e

Tibeden, T Onzicher 20100




National Polymer Industries Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
Tar the year endad 30 June 220

. Asmount in Taka
Particulan Notes | S0 dume 2020 || 30 June 2019
Cosh Flows from Oiperating Activities
Callection from Sales and Others 1,270,656, 135 2.821,671,195
Payment 1o Suppliess, Enplovees and (hhers (1,703,677 256) {2,683 065 427
26018279 138,605, TaR
Tmcomee: Tax Paid [127.253,950) (133,840,577}
Faneign Exchangs Gain'{Lass) (L033,928) (1,681,357}
Finarcial Expenses [153 685, 130) (101,323,311}
Net Cash Flows from Operaiing Activities 35 243025 171 (98,139, 516)
Casl Flows from Investing Activities
Payment for acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment 4.6 (133,206, T34) (337,594, 506)
Sale of Fixed Asssis 470,000 :
Trvestment in FOR (133,335,911} [10,E77,625)
Capital Work in Progresa (CWIF) & - (47,210,000}
Net Cash used in [nvesting Activithes [266,072,645) (355,6B2.531)
Cosh Flows from Finencing Activities
Prooceeck from Lang Term Loan 176,552,777 561,211,813
Payment of Long Term Loan (468 522 OBE) {208, 208,371}
Short Term Loan- IncresseqDecreas) 250231, 104 104,621,668
Imtercompany Loan (28 118,6910) B0, 015,004
Trierest Paid on Long Term Loan (54,815, 065) (82,046, 79T}
Net Cash Flaws! {msed) fram Financing Activities 436K 037 484 597 16
Mat Increase/(Decrease) In Cash during the year 61,330,653 (X4 T3
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 1z 2HE31T 476 209, 542 207
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 261,634,140 200, 31T ATH
Met Operating Cash Flow per Share 34 6 {260
The arneced nofes form an integral poet of these Finoaeial Statements
T ave =4 w T T I
Chdrenen Managing Direcior Compary Sectetary

Dibales, 39 Oetiodber 2020
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Matlonal Polymer Indostries Limdted
Motes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the yenr ended 30 hme 2020

Reparting Entity

1.1 Profile of the Company

1.1,1 Legsl Status of the Company

Malsonal Polymer Industries Limated {the “Company™) was incorparaled under the Commpames Aol 1994 as a Poblsc Comgpany Limited
by sharcd on June 26, 1987 snd ils dharce are lisled in the Stock Bxchange (both in Dhaka and Chiltsgong Siock Exchange Lid) in
Bengledesh during the year 1991 s 1995 respectively,

1L.1.2 Address of Registersd Offce and Principal Ploce of Business

The Company's registersd affice is located at Squib Road, Wishamagar, Tongi, Gazipur,

L.L3 Natwre of Business

The company owns and opemates FYC Pipes, PVC Doors and Hottle grade PVC Compound Masafacturing Plant, produces and markets
the same in the loca] end Soreign markets.

L1 Mumber of Emplovess:

The mamber of emplovess at year-end wene £33 and Board of Directors (46,

Structure, Contenl and Prosentation of Finencia] Statements

provided by TAS 1: “Presemtation of Financial Stabements™. A complete set of Financial Ststements comprise:
(1) Statemenl of Financisl Position;

() Statement of Prolil of Loss and Others Comprehengive Incoene;

(i} Srapement of Chanpes is Equin:

(v} Seatement of Cash Flows; and

(%) Motes io the Financial Smatements,

Significant Aceounting Folicies

1.1 Hasia of Measureoent of Ebements of Financial Statements

The Finmmrizl Scatements have been prepared in the historical oost basis, and thenefome, dio not teken into considerntion the effect of
those of previoos years.

3.2 Reporting Period

The Fimancial Siatements covers the vear fom 1 July 2019 to 30 Jume 2020,

L3 Statement oo Compliznce With Loecal Laws

Thez Firancinl Staterents hive been prepared in complisnce with dischosure and presentational requirements;
» The Securities & Exchang: Fules, 1987,

* Internstional Accounting Standards (JAS) or Incermations] Financisl Reporting Standards (IFRS) & spplicable in Bangladesh:
+ Fieancinl Reparting Act, 201%;

» The Listimg Rules of Diaka Stock Frohanges Lid.;

* The Listing Fusdes ol Chifiagong Stock Exchanges Lid ;

+ The Companies A 15594,

* Incoene Tax Ordinence 1984 and Rules;

« WAT At 1900

w (e melevem) bocal bews amed rules.

1A Golng Concern

As per LAS-1, a company is required to assess at the end of cooh year to make assessment of its capabality to conkinue as going concem.
Mdamagement of the Company makes such assessment each year. The company has adeguate resosrces to continue §is” operation for the
Toreseeable foture and bas wide coverape af its lssilities. For thas reason, the directors continue 1o sdopl poing concern assuomplion
whils preparng the Financial Slalcments.

1.5 Acerual Rask

The Ficancial Siatements have boen prepancd, cucepl fior Cash Flow Statements, usting the accrual basis of sccounting.
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36 Uan of Estimatis and Jedgments

The preparation of Financaal Sintements in conformity with Internaticoal Accounting Standards {LASs} or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) requires the mansgement 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the smoums of assets, lisbiliies,
revemoe, oosts, expenses and other comprehensive inoomeiboss) thet sre reported in the Pinancial Staiements and ecoompenying
disolosures.

These estimates are based on manegement's best knowledge of current events, historical experience, actions that the company may
unsdertake im fistore and on various other assemptions that are believed 1o be reasonable under circumstances.

A7 Property, Plant £ Equipnsest [PPE)

Property, Plant & Eguipment are recognized if it §3 probable that foture ecomoenic benefits msocisied with tho assets wall flow fo the
company el the cost of the assets cam be relisbly measured. The cost of acgamisition of an asset comprises its purchass prace and any
direcily attribuinble cosl of bringing e assets fo its working condstion for 5is mivnded we inclusive of inward freighd, dutios, non-
rufandable tawes and un-allocated expendibores etc.

Suwhseguent Coats

The oot of replacing part of on item of Property, Flant and BEquipenends i recognized in the camrylng amosed of sn jbem (§ it is probabide
that the fubsre sconomée benetiis smbodied within the pant will flow o the compasy and s oost can be mzasured reliably. The costs of
the day-toeday servicing of Propesty, Plant and Fguipment are recogrized in the Stadement of Comprehensive oome 8 inoormed.

Tepresistion
Depreciation i3 provided on the cost of the asseis afer commissioning, over the period of their expocied wseful lives, in accordance
with the provizions of IAS |& Property, Plaot and Epsipment Deprecistion i=s changed on addition dormg the pericd when it is
avuiloble for ose. Deprecistion is charged on all fiwed assels except land and land development oo reducing balance meibosd wt
e following rates:

Ente of
Farticular of Assels Depreciation
Factory Building, Fadiory Lebomabory Hr
e, Admisdstrative & {Godown Shed il
Fectory Boundary Wall 13
Plant and Machinery & Local Machinery o i
Furnicare and Fixranes 10
Orfficn Bquipmesn 10
Wehlcles %
Tt G Inestullaliom 103
Gos Generoior & Deesel Generator o i
Blachine Bhad & Siesl Rack 103

Retirements and Ddsposals

When fixed sssets are sokd, the cosl nd accumslited depracialion ane elisminated and revenue gain or kel | iTany) B rellacied in the
Statement of Comprehensive Tnoome that ia determised on the basia of set book valee of e assets and net sales proseeds oF neilined
At

AR Acerual hasis Caplial work in progress:

Capitnl work in progress consists of soguisition costs of plant and machinery, capital components and related installation cost until the
date placed im service. In case of mport of components, capital work in progress is recognized when msks and rewerds associsted witk
such assets are transferred to the company, that is, at the time of shipment is condimed by the supplier.

1.9 Applicatisn of Stamdards

Stahes of application of 1ASs and [FRSs is prosootted bslow of the compamy for the period under sodit:

Name of the Ascounting Stasdards Ruf, Stwins
First-tiirie acdipilion ol Fiersationil Fininsal Reporting Slandands IFRS-1 Mol apjplicable
Share Bascd Pryment IFRS-2 Mot applicable
Busizess Combinations IFRS-3 Mt applicabile
Mon-currend Saste Held for Sale amd Discontinued Ciperation IFRS-5 Mot applicable
Exploration for and Evalutson of Mineral Resources IFRS-6 Mot applicabls
Financigl Fatrumenta: Disclogures TFRE-7 Agplicd
Operating Segments IFRS-& Mot applicable
Financiel Exirumenis IFRS-9 A.”'Il.ﬂd.
Comaglicdated Fizmncial Statements IFRS-10 Mot applicable
Jaint Arrangements IFRS-11 Mot applicables
Disclune of lercal in olher Entilics IFRS-1Z Mol applicable
Fuir Value Moaracment IFRS-1% Mot applicable
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[Regulatory Deferral Accounts IFRS-M ot ipplicshile
|Revenue from Comtracts with Customers IFRS-I5 Applied
[Lenses FRS- 1 e egplicehle
| esarance Coniract IFR5-I7 Mt sgrplicable
[Preseniation of Financisl Statemets IA5-1 Applied
| Eeventocies LAS-2 Applied
|Satemens of Cash Flows AT Applied
|.'|.nmn11u Policies, Changes in Accourniing Estimates snd Froors 1A Applied
[Evemts after the Reporting Period [AS-10 Applied
[E=come Taxes LAS-12 Applied
|Property, Pliat and Equipment LAS-16 Applied
|Emploves Bunelits [AS-19 Applied
Acooumnting for Government Grants and Deschosure of Government Assistanos LAS20 Applied
The Effects of Chenges in Foreign Fxchangs Rates LAS-21 Applied
[Bocrowing Cosss B B [A5-23 Applied
|Related Party Dischasures [AS-24 Applind
| Eervestmesns in Associates LAS-28 ot egpliceble
|Esreings per Share [A5-33 Applied
[ Etcrim Finmicial Reporting LAS-34 Applicd
[Eetangible Asseis [AS-38 Kot Applicable
IF‘:i'rl.lnu'.l.l instramesvs: Becngnitim and Measarement [AS-35 Applied
[ vestment Property - LAS-40 P wgeplicable
| Agriculture [AS-41 Mot epplicaile
3.1 Tnvendory

Iventories are messured 2t bower of oost and met realizzhble walue in accordance with [AS-2 ([oventories). The cost of invenlories
inclisdes expenditure inamred for sapuiring. the imventories, produection or convension costs and ofher cosis in bringmg them 1o theic
exieming locstion and comditeon, [n the cise of manufictured inventorics and work in progress, ooet includes an sppropriats shise of
production cverheads based on nonmal operating capacity, Haw materials in tremsit ore valosd of cost. Med realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ardinary cowrse of bosiness bess the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The weighted
avernge cost method hes been nsed 1o determine the valee of inventory.

311 Finanelal Instroments:

A fisancial instroment is any contmes thet gives mse fo a Gnancial asset 10 one pary and & fisncial Fability or eqaity iBetrament o
undther pasty.

i} Finamcinl Assets:

Financial assets of the coepany imclods cash and cash equivalent, trade asd other recsivables, other long term receivehles and deposizs,
The company imitially recogmizes the financial assets when and only when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the transaction. All other Enancial assets ame recageized initially on the date at which the compasny becomes a party 10 the contractusl
provissoms of the rimsections. The complsy derecognises the Anancial ssset when and only when the contraciual rights of probstlitics

of recelving the flows from the asset explre or it rassfers the rights to receive the comirachml cash fiows om the flmancinl weset in a
transmction in whick substantially all the risks and rewnrds of cemership of the financinl assets are transferred.

{a) Accaunts Reciivabbes:

Thess are casried st original isvelice amoent. This considersd good and collectable, wnd therefore, no amount was written off as bad
debl and o Scb was conssdencd doubthial 1o provide Ko,

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Acoonimg o [AS T “Staverent of Cash Flows"™, cash comprises cash in band and demand dieposii and, cash equivalinis s short lerm,
highly lkquid Inwestmenes thet are readily comvertible to known amounta of cash and which are sebject to s imsignificsst risk of
changes im velie, 1AS 1 “Presenistion of Pisancial Statements™ provides thet Cash snd Cash Fquoivalents are not restricted in use,
Considering the provisions of LAS T and TAS | cash in hand aod hank halences hove been considered as cash and cash equivalents.

(rher Corvent Assers:

Onher curfenl assets have a walue on realizstion in the ordinary course of bustneas that is &t bast equsl 1o the amount &8 which they are
sraced in the Stenement of Fingnzial Position.
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i) Finamcial Lishilities:

The company initially recogmizes the financial liabilities when and coly when the company becomes a party fo the contractual
prowisions of the tansaction. The cosrpisy derecognizes the financial lishilities when fe eontmactns] obligatioes ane discharged or
cancelled or expired. Fimancial lsabilities include payable for cxpeoses, Lighility for mapital expenditures, Finance leass obligation,
bnans end borrowings and other carrent |labdlities.

il.{n) Finance Lesse Obligation:

Lesscs m o of which the enlity sssemes subslantially &l the risks gnd rewends of ownershep are classafcd s limance lease, Upon
initizl recognition, the leesed asset is measured 2t an amount equel o the keer of s fzir valos and the present valuee of minimum
bemse paginenta, Sulmequent 1o initlal recogadthon, the ksset i acsountad for in accordimes with the scosisting pollcy sgplieable tothat
asset.

il.{b) Loans nmd Borrewings:

Frincipal amounts af the loans and borroeings are stabed ot their amorttred amount. Bomrowings repayable afier twelve months fom
the date of Statement of Fimaecial Position are classifled as non-ousrent liabdlities wheseas the portion of borrowings repayable within
twelhve emithe [rom the dste of sislemenl of Gnancal position, anpaid micess! and other changes are classifed & camment liabilities,

il.{e) Accoumts Payables:

The company recognizes a fimancial liability when its contractual obligations arizing from past events are certain and the setilement of
which is expected 1o result in an ctflow from the entity of resources embodying benefies.

312 N peiir e i

i, Financial Asscis

Tende receivabde i assessed ot each reporting date to determine whether there is cbjective evidence that it is impaired, Trade
recivable is impaired iF objective evidinoe indicates thal 3 loss evenl has ocoamed &fler the initial recognition of the sssets and that
the loss had 2 negative effiect on the estimated fibare cagh Sows of that asset that can be estimaded refiahly.

ii. Mom-Fimancial Asseis

An asse is imparred when §ls arrving amousd exceeds 18 recoverable smounl. The company assesses 8 each reportiog dale whether
there is any indication that o asset mey be impaired. B any such indication exisis, the company estimates the recovershle amoant af
the assel, The recreerable amounl of an ssel 8 the higher ol e fir vales ks cosis to sl and is value nouse, Carrping amonl of the
aspets is meduced 1o its recoverable amount by recognizing an impaimment loss if the recoversble amount of the asset is less then iis
carrying amoant. Imguinment loss 8 recognized mmediately in profit or loss unless the asset i cervied at revalued smoant. Asy
mmpairment loss of 8 revaleed asset shall be treabed as & revaluatson decrease.

413 Taxetion

Incom: tex expenso compriscs of curront and doformed teces. B s rocognizod intho Statement of Comprohomsive neome and accounted
fior In aceordance with the requirements of 1AS 12 Inooene Taxes.

i, Curreni Tacation

The tix cuffently payable is based on e Taxahle profie for the year and any adjusstmenl o o pigable in reapect of previdu yeir, The
company is a Publicly Traded Compemy. As per the Income Tax Ondinance, | 984 the e of tacation applied st the rate of 25.00%

il. Deferred Tazation

The company does not require to compute deferred tax on PPE, becouse it charges deprecistion as per method, conditions and rade’s as
specified in the 3™ Schedule of the Income Tax Ovdinance, 1984, Depreciation has been charged on all items of Fixed
Asgets except fiw Land amd Lamd Development on Reducing Balance Method. During the period, there were oo
temporary differenca’s between Tax Base and Corrying Amount of an Asset or Liability.

314 Revaluation Reserve

Revabaation reserve arcse fom the revelustion of land end lend development which were revalued on 2th Jume 2006 by RS,

GEOTECH Susvey compasy (pv1) Lod, a firm of professions] valuers on the basis of markes price preveiling in the couniry, The
differencs between revalustion and actunal book valos bas boen reporied in acoounts umder the head Rovaboation Resern.

The company has revaloated (onder Fair Valoe' method) s own lond in the year of 2013 kocated at Squib Road, Tongi Industrial Area,

Crpur by independent valuer Mahfel Hug & Co. The sres of the land is 311,10 Desimals. Book value of (e lind wag Taka
67,411,905, After valuation, this is increesed 1o 597,312,000, Revalued amount is Taka 523,900,005,
Revahued Amcusst as on 4 My 3014 447,312,000
Leas: Book Value # on Revalustion date (67,411,905)
Revaluation Reserve witheut Charging Cagital Gain 520,900,055
Less: Defierred Tax Lishility f)15% on Tk 529,900,095 70,485,014
450,415,081
Add: Opening Halance of Revelustion ressrve 43 B8 841
Revaluation Reserve 496,260,922
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3,15 Tax Holiday Heserve:

The company enjoyed five years Tax Floliday for wmit-1 up to Febnmry I8, 1995 while for unit —I1 for a peried of Gve years ended om
Aper| 30, 2000, Uhnit IO Tor & period of five yoars ended om Jusse 30, 2003 gnd Uns TV fior a periad of ve vears ended on December 31,
2, Curresitly not exjoying Tix Holyday Beneflt,
516 Foreign Corrency Transkation:
Transactiors denominated in foreign cusrencies are tramsloted into Banglodeshi Takns and recorded ol retes of exchange ruling on the
date of transaction in accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Forsign Exchange Rates”.
2,17 Freviaioms, Accrwid Expensis amd Other Payables
Provvisions and scansed sxpemsss ane recogoioed in the Financisl Statements in ling wilh be Ilermations]l Acooisting Standard (LAS)
37 Provisiong, Concingent Liabilitles and Contimpend Asscts™ when

= the compeany hes a legel or constructive obligation as o result of past event.

- it is probable that an ostflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

- & relishle estimate can be msde of Uhe antous o the chligation.
318 Contingent Lishilbiies
The Company does mol heve any conticgent liabilities as om the reporting dale.

219 Revense {Tursaver) From Sabes
Bt gale comprises the inviiesd value of poode supplicd by (he cotpany and corliss of Sales o manuBusured gosle excludisng Value
Added Tax (VAT

Hevenue Recogmition

The revemoe is recognized after satisfring all the followimg conditions for revenoe recognition as provided in [FRS 15 “Revenue
B sticn™

& The company has translizrned fo the Baver (e eignificent rsks and rewards of ewnership of the goods;

b, The Comgasy retalng neither continsing managerial invelvement io the degres wually sssccluted ownership sor effective control
io. The amouml of nevinue can be mesaned mlsabhy;

d, [t is probeble that the eoonome benefits sssociped with the transaction will flow jo the companty;

& The cost incurred or #o be imcurred in respect of the transaction cen be measared relishly,

Otther mon-operating incoms hes been recognized on acomual basis.

.20 Borrowing Cost:

Bormowing cost &s recognized as expense iz the pericd in wivich they are incarred emless capitalization of soch is allowed under LAS 25-
Bormmwing casl.

.21 Earnings Per Share:

The Company caloulsies Earmings Per Shares (EFS) in scoondance with [AS 33 “Eamings per Shares™ whdch bas been shown on the
fage of Statement of Comprehensive Income and, the compitetion of EPS i sated im Mote 33, Earning per shere (EPS) has besn
comperied by dividing the profit after tax (PAT) by the momber of ordinary shares cutstanding as on 30 June 2000 a5 per LAS-33
“Earnimgs par Shares™.

3.22 Rasic Earmings ¢ Loss:

This nepresinis earnings / oss o the year altribulabls fo ondinary shardholders. As thers was no profierends dividend, minoety intenest
of exira ondingry Hems, the net peofit / loss afier tax for the vear his bess congldered ap fully siribaiahle w0 the ordinary sharcholders,

3,23 DHlwted Earndngs Per Share:
Mo dibmied BPS i required vo be caloalmed for the vear & there wis no geope Tor dilution dusm the vear ubder review,

R Stabemend of Cash Flows:

Statemnent of Cash Floos is prepared principally i scoondance with [AS 7 “Statement of Cash Floos™ and the cash flow from the
opraling sctivitivs have been prosenisd under direct melbod as presabed by (be Securities and Exchangn Bules 1987 and considering
the provizion of Parsgraph 19 of 1A% 7 which provides thet “Entsrprise arc Encrursged fo Report Crsh Flow From Operating Activities
Using the Drirsct Methiod".

515 Dividend for the Year:

After the reporting period, the Board of Directors recommended | 5% Cash dividend per share which will be recognized in the sccounts
a5 and when spproved by the sharebalders in the Asmusl General Meeting

3,26 Events Alter thi Reporting Perisd:

Events afler the reportmg petiod thal provide: additional information shoul the company's possticon &1 the dste of slatement of Fmancal
Pogitiom oF those that Indicate the going comcern assamption |s mot appropeiate are reflected in the financial statements, Events afler
reporting that are not adjusting evenis are disclosed in the notes when material.
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117 Post Clesing Events
After the reporting perind, the Hoard of Directors recommeended 15% Cash dividend per sdhare, The proposed dvidend is sobject oo
sharehplders” approval in the forthooming Anmuel General Meetmg.

[Particulars 019-20 1018-19
[Officers 118 L4l
|Staif 183 (£
[Skilled and unskilbed workers 32 0
[Total [EE] [1F]
.29 Employes Benefit

1. Defined Comtribution Flan

The Company maintaizs & recognized provident fmd & 10% of basic pay {equally coniribaied by employes and smployer) o all
eligibde permanes employess. The asid fund is mansged by o bosrd of tosiess,

ii. Defimed Bemefit Flam

The Company maintaing an wnfunded gratoity scheme and deduoct when retirement bezefits are paid by the company. The employess
are extitle 1o gratuity beasfit afier completion of mindmum 5 yesns senvice in the company.

iii. Empdoyee’s Group Insarance

The compasy Bae also & group insutancs scheme for 8 permanent efmployses, premsum for which i3 hang charped o Statement of
Comprehensive Incoms annually as per the insurance policy.

150 Advertisement. Poblicity & Fromotional Expenses:

Al poests: associsted with advertising and promoting products are expensed in the year it inoormed.

L3 Addithonal Information on Financial Statenswts;

i. Respomsibilities for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statensests:

The Board of Direciors is responsihle for the preparation ond presentation of Fimascinl Statements under section 153 of the Companies
At 1994 and ax per the provision of “The Framework for the Propamation and Preseotation of Financial Statemnents” issoed by the
Internsiotal Accountimg Stamdands Commines (LASC),

ii. Risk and Uncortaintie for uie of Eslimates in Proparation of Finsncial Staemenis:

The pruparatiom of fnancial statements is in confiormity with the Inbernstional Accounting Standards (IAS) regquires mansgement bo
mske coflmates and assumnpilons that affect the neporied amousts of assets and lsabdlitles and disclosure of contingent ssseis and
linhilitGes o the daie of the firancial sixiements and revenses and expenses during the persod reporied. Actoal result coold differ from
thoss esticmates. Eslmmates are used for accounting of cerlain ilems sech a8 long lern contrac, deprecialion and amorioslion, taoes,
reserves, employes benefits and comtingencies,

tii. Complisnce with the Intrrmstional Aceounting Standerds (LAS=)

The Financinl Ststements hive been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the [AS mnd TFRS ns applicable in Bangladesh
The title and format of these Fimancial Statements follow the rogairements. of IFRS / IAS which are to some extemt diffirent from the
requinements of the Compenies Aex 1994, Howewer, such differences are oot manertal snad in the view of Mankgement IFRS ¢ 1AS tikes
and format give better presemtion fo the sharsholders.

131 Avthorimtion for Issue:

Thess Financisl Statemenis have been suthorized for issue by the Board of Direciors of the Company on 2% Ociober, 2020

155 Segment Reparting:

Ag there s & singhe bosiness within which the comguny operates as such oo segment reporting is felr necessary.

.34 Comparstive Information:

Figpares ol e year 2018-2019 hive been nesmranged and regrouped whenever sonssdened necessary W ensure comparabilily with the
current pericd. The disclsures in the Financial Stntements, i all materials respects, are in eccordence with Intemational Accouanting
Standards ([AS).

158 Oeffwetting:

Firancinl essets ond liahilities are offeet and the met amoent is reported im the Finoncial Statements only when there is legally
enforceable right 1o set off the recogmized amousts and the Company intemds gither 10 setile on & net basis, or to realim the assels and
b gettle the lkabilities sirmulissenusly

Each material itern has been presented separately in company™s Fimancial Ststements. [mmnaterial amounts have been aggregated with
the smdanis of exmilar panse of adson,
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337 Reporting Currency
The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company's. functional corrency.

338 Directors' Respanaibility Stabensent

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presemtation of the Financial Staiements under section 183 of the
Companies Adl, 1994 and as per the provision of The Framework fie the Preparation and Presentation of Financal 5talements” iswed

3.39 Riskh Management
The msue is discassed in details under “Management Discusiion and Analysis™

340 General
i. Figures have been rourkded off to the nearest taka.
ii. Previous pericds'year's figures have been rearranped whenever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the cunent year,

Hi. The Company publishes bs quanedy accousis &8 per IAS 34 “Intecim Finencial Reporting” and the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchangs Commission (BSEC) Motification Mo, BSEC/CMBRCDY2006-1 387208 Admin'E1 dated 20 hune 2018,
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Amoust in Taka
I June J0E0 || 30 June 20019
401 Property, Plast & Equipment
Opesing Balance LT1T A1 E T334397 253
Addizion during the year inchuding rnsferred from CWIP 159,835,530 19261 4,906
R0 -
Cowtas et 30 Fane 2019 T T4 B0, TR LTI O LES
Acoarmilated Dapreciation {1,304 244 512} {1,087 518,545
Clesing Babinc T, - 71 I— . 2= A

(Dietails i Mote - 3.7 & 4)
Dhepeexiation is changed on all Fied Azsete excepd for Land end Lind Development on neducing halimes method,

S Tmvestmeni
FIOR = Uiara Finanes & nvestment Lid 115077 425 1446, 7 M0, THHD
Adkd: Adden Dhurisg e year 10,530,911 B,377.625
FOR im IPDNC 2,500,000 2,500,
Add: Addton Durisg the year TE 45,000 .
FIR im 5CH 200,000,000 .
mlﬂ ]]Iiﬂﬁ
Mame of Tmstituic FOE Mo Tmterest Bate Branch Maturity Dute
LUttara Finance & Investmems Lad. 1022417 10.25% (Fshan 31 May Hi2]
IPTIC Finance Limited OGTAE 6.50% {Fulsan 25 May 2021
IPDC Fnance Limated 06T £.50% Gulkhan 018 Juky 2021
IPDIC Finance Limated 6 TR L00% {ulhan 011 Aug 3020
IPDIC Finance Limaed [RET i1, 501% {aulhan 26 Mov 2030
IPTIC Finance |imeted DGET4E 10, 50% lshan 13 Jan 2021
Sl Capital Werk Tn Progress (CWIF)
Ohpesing Ol Constriction TR ERG, ED R7,96,380
Add: Chl Construction i progress during the year . 47,2 10,004
Less: Trensferred o Factory Buildings during the year (26,428 T96)| (55,020,008
43,347 593 79,886,385
——— L e — R
TAD Tawendories [ 3 June 020 | [ 50 Jume 2019 ]
Cruamiiiy Taks Quantity Talks
Raw Maberials 5,930 FET 342,309 (R 4B3,070,824
Wik in Proces 41,518,125 35,501,254
Finished Goods 5725 A0 BT 5425 302,510,625
Stores and Spares 11,585 220 0,004,350
Htnck in Tromsit 15 535 13 150,142,674
Packieg Materisl 3,490,040 2,518,090
— =L e LB AT R
B Accounts Becvhables
Roucivablos Againsl Sk T3] 45D RG 510,673,198
—— RN ERE o SIOGTH 08
Ly Range | Amountiin Tala || Amoust in Taka |
Helow 30 days 355,107,32R HRATALL
Feehow 200 184,763,209 | 211,028,377
el 1R _ 65,714,567 66,387,516
Abovu 150 Bulow 1 Yoer 21,5904 862 22 980,294
Total T ARSIRG | 510,673,198

ai This is unsecuned, considersd pood and i falling doc within one e,
1) W mmount is considered doabitfisl or bad and theeefore no peovigion i made in the Fnancis] Statemosds.
) Mo amsount & due by ey Director oo other Offioer of dee compasy med any of them severally or jointly with ey other person.




Amaunt in Taka
30 June 2020 || 30 Jung 2w
S Acerwed Inderesi Becebvable on FOR Inderesi Bade Hﬂ Dimie
Utisrs Finance & Fvestmend Lo, 10.25% 31 My 2021 1073419 G11.400
IPDC Finence Limmited 11.00% 28 Miay 202 . 25211 |
IPDY Financs Lisbed 6200 29 My 202 16,356 -
IPD3C Finznoe Limited ll.l:l:ﬂi 15 Jan 2021 l]m -
[P Finance Limied 10,3 265 Mov B30 470,303 -
IPXC Finznoe Limited 1 El_'l‘!{: [i]] ﬁ_nﬁ ] E]lﬁi‘ -
IPDXC Finanes Lisited 10,39, 11 ey 2025 ] R
Standared Chartored Bank Lid 515% I3 June 2025 51,042 | -
& J
T Advanee, Deposdt & Pre-payments

Advances:
Advance in Supplicrs
Ot in g Ralanse SEMT 195 SR TR G5
Jufid: Droring the ¥ear 7 .51E W4 LT TéE0 L 96
Less: Bill Adjustmesa SR, il

15,636,519 SE04T 153
Advemos by Emplonves TAHIE BGE L0E2E Ak
Advemce againgt Brand Development 4954155 F214,5900
Chhir Aulvances 1,796 TR EIEEE!E

0,398 B2 TT85 151
Deposiia
Security Deposit 3,£50,800 1,216,900
Ml mrprin, Tender Farnasl Momey & othir Depoaits 15,7TE6,1EG ISTEALR
Depasit for Utkties 11,800,241 T RN

3] 446477 47 334 41%
Prepayments:
Fropaid Renl 29,137 02 34279 835
Value Added Tax (VAT) 41,090 Sk2 32152 716

MLIIT R4 43 1

131 1 IEEII

o} Employees advence of Tk. 7 A0E £56 mclndes sdvance o officers mostly for officm] purpose.

1) Mo amount & due by e Divecioms, inchaing Manapeg Director of officer of the company and any of them severally o jentdy wits any
other persom except s staied in (1) above.
LM Advands Indome Tax

Cipening balence R 05 204 279 650,597
AIT Prad &2 Pore (Impon Stage) 110,248 863 11T 352 050
AIT Peid ot Port (Export, Local & Others) 16,568,081 L& 148 987
AIT oo ¥elicks 347,000 0 500
TS on Bangladesh Bank Cash Assistance AT S091E
TIS on FINK imderest 1,407 046 533,623
AIT Refund op to 2018 FY (195,122 555) -
Prior ¥ear Adusiment on Income Tax Assessment
(Incoms Yiear 2016-2007) - {45.480.513)
Frior ¥ear Adustment on Inoome Tax Assesament
(Ineome Year 2017-2014) (33.530.504) )
- B

Frior Year Adustment on Inoome Tax Assessment hes been made for the Income Year 30172018 toted Tk 33,530,504 (pgainst Reained
Esrnings The 7,080,209 sad Provision for tax The 26,450,205 under Moie - 16 & 25},
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Amount in Taks
30 June 2020 [[ 30 Juwne 2019

1200 Cash & Cash Equivalines

Cash in Fand 2,761,344 2,787,261
Cash o Bank Nt~ 1201 298,876,796 197,530,215
et A o SOOI ATE
1201 Cash st Bank Branch AT Mo,
AB Bank Limited Crabsban Circle-2 CD-R8500 903, 624 202911
Agrumi Bank Limited Amiin Coust Corp. Br, COR-0I%E 43 468 1,530
Agrieni Bank Lisied Nawsbpur Corp, Br. COR-06621 919,220 BE26,057
Bank Asin Limited Guldhan CD-10825 2,910,566 3086493
BRAC Bank Limiled Satmistjeed Rioad CD-51001 58,205,581 33,326,314
City Bank Limied Dhanmendi CD-28001 285,800 B13,543
Dhaika Hasle Limited Crulshan Cirele-2 OD-17574 1,921,102 2433,k84
Dutch Bangln Tank Limited Bashundhara CD-10144 4,028,617 6,517,827
Easiern Hask Lid, Grubian Cirele-2 CD-22731 507,522 -
TFIC Buank Limited Mipulevi Bazar CD-21001 715,197 1,185 6
Istarmh Hank Hangladesh Limited Kawran Buzar CD-12804 5,301,822 18638475
Jamuna Bank L imited Gukshan CD-13615 £4,527,959 36917404
Janisa Bank Limiied Al Bazar Ch-16135 1av, 0 33,30
Jansta Bank Limited Cksban-| CD-71210 569,551 1,248,558
Modhumati Benk Limiied Cralshan COHN i, 1S, 304 F: R EE
Miwtaal Trust Bank Limived MTE Cerer Com. Br. CD-05604 369,590 478,715
Mofrerpal Trust Bank Lineied Hanani D795 157,013 170,555
Matiomal Benk Limiled Croksban CD-69629 59,351,502 30,226,183
WOC Bask Lid. Dhanmondi CDANA20 189,713 [43,141)
O Bank Limiled Dhanmondi CD-E7001 207,932 (33,344)
Premier Bask Limited Gaulshan Circle-2 CO40043 196,377 1,974,797
Prims: Bk Limited Mutijhe] CD-80705 154,706 2,339,176
Prime Haok Limited Gulshan Circle: 2 CD-2288% 6,322,663 .
Pubsli Bank Limited Culhan MUT Corp, B, CD-24344 1,780,465 9,437,305
Shahajalal [shemi Bank Limiied Satmnsjeed Road CDA1639 252,984 5 30,566
Somall Bank Limied Lalmssia COA8067 144,543 3,5K1 404
Stendord Besk Limited Cakban. | CD-03814 366,031 5268280
Trust Basik Lid. Crulihan Cormp. B, CD-16474 450,762 321 484
United Commercizl Bank Limited Tongi CD-03100 40,268,203 14,268,355
Utara Beak Limised Kalshsgnn CO-11673 B4, 594 5,384,326
Uttara Benk Limited Tongi CD-13787 354,517 10,121
—— A e s——— A
1300 Share Capital
Austhtind;
300,000,000 Cwtiary Sharst of Taka 10 sach —F!, L — L
Tsstbedd, Subscribid snd Pabd-up:
T) 134,0000 Circinary Sheres of Taka 10 each 13,400,000 13,400,000
T} 1340000 Rights Shares of Takn 10 each (1-1) 13,400,000 13,400,000
T} 36,0000 Rights Shares of Taka 10 sch (1:2) 53,600,000 53,600,000
TV} 6,388,843 Bonus Shares of Taka 10 each 3,888,450 63, BERASD
V) 1,597,192 Bomus Shares of Taka 10 each 15,971,920 25971920
V1) 3,404,207 Bonus Shares of Taka |0 cach 34,042,070 34,052,070
VII) 4,086,248 Boows Shares of Taka 10 cach 40,862,480 40,862 480
VIIT} 5,393, 848 Bonus Shares of Taia 10 each 53,938,480 53930 ARD
IX) 6,580,498 Honug Shares of Taka 10 cach 5,004,940 -
34918380 299,113,400
Composition of Shareholding: [ 30 June 2020 | 30 June 2019 |
Numher % Numher N
Spoasoes Direcion 15,720,877 £ 13,500,066 4543
Fizancial nstitutions 4,631,601 1269 2,368,424 782
Cieeral 16,130,356 430 13,952,850 46,65
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MName wise shreholding position of Spoapers’ Directors:

Name Position | [ Sharchalding Qty. %
|Mr. Golam Murshed Chairman 1281420 o8 3|
Mr. Riad Mahmud Managing Director 1,434,251 1.93%
Mr. Bobel Maheod Sponany 716202 1008
Mrs. Ravs Sullana Sponsos 153041 [T i
Mrs. Khabada Akhand S ponisoT 0,069 0024
Late Shamsul Abedi Akhand and Sponsor 3,231,611 8.56%|
(M, Khaleda Akhand (Tomt Account)
M. Nunzznman Khan Momimated Direchor K,285,283 H.?ﬂﬁl
Total 18, 719.877 41.1]'!-5'
Classification of Sharcholders by holding:
[ Namber of FHaklers 1 Total HeMling () |
Holdings Ai-0-2000 A0-06-201% A0-0i- il A0-06-201%
L o 500 2310 1427 41.12 51,13
S0 to 1,000 21 139 14.15 1215
LML tis 5,040 1280 55 eyl 1353
S 1y 50,000 A 299 LT n
SO0 o sbuve T 61 149 119
. Gl LY — . . N
Aot in Taks
M June 302D || 3 June 2019

146} Share Fremium
Toied 536,00 Shares of Taka 250 each 134 300 CR0 1 34, 000,000

T —
i, 134, 00000, 00000 sty e oof 5, 30,(HK) Chadinary Skares in Januaery 2009 for The 250

L5} Hevalistion Heserve

Opening Bakmsce 496,260,912 496,260,992
Land Revahued during this year - -
946,160,522 456, 260,522
Diederred Tax on Land Revaluation - -
—— e e—

O sth May 2015, the companmy has revaboated it own land kocated at Squib Eoad, Tongs Industrial Area, Geoipor by mdependent vahuer
Idnbfinl Hug & Co. The aea of the leed i 311,10 Decimals. (Dietails i MNote- 304}

1600 Retnined Earnings

Cpening Balmeos 16,533 569 136,659,074
Fayment of Siock Dvidend (65,504 540) (53,938 4800
170,738,730 132,720,594
Tex Adfustmen| sginst axsessmon] 20014-101 5 and 201 5-2006 FY) - -
Tex Adfustmen sgeinst assessment (20016-3017 FY) - {23,394,1%5)
T Adfustmicn| sgidne axscsmon] (200 7-1018 FY) {7 OB, o -
Profe during G yesr cnd 150255 914 127, i
LB MIeSlIARE
17T Lasg Torm Loan
Stamdard Charered Bank
Opening  Halomos o3 483041 420,194, 181
Audd : Recetved during the year . .
Faid during the year (LER TED $46) {126,743, 140
154 2 4T 253,432,041
Cusrent Materity within one year (ST SEL 54T) (L8 THG.433]
BT TR NIN Tipd i3 504
Easiern Bank Lid
Cpening Balmmon T.H045 %7.944,231
Add : Roncerved during the year . 131296811
Faid during the year (24T 241 345) (31,999,699
- 47 241 345
Chmrent M sbarity within one yer - (55, 136,359)
- 192,114,986 _
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Amoust in Taks
30 Jone B0 || 30 Jume 2009
Jamune Bamk Lid.
{Opening balainoe 1 L4 49 O 15097, 186
Reveived durisg the year T 55 S 18R 215,002
Pl durieeg thee: vear (2T 5662100 (10,163,100
171252778 114 40 0BE
Currest Maturity within one yer {43621 T) (20,734, R54)
125,558 561 [TRIER:T)
Mwbasl Truost Bank 1.6d.
Opening balance . 2B 980,568
Received during the year 13, TT1 61T -
Pl durisg tris vear (26168300 [ZE 5B, 56R)
ILA5LTET -
Curmest Waturity within one year (B30 4075 -
— A =
Prime Bank Lid,
peming balanoe - -
Roeceived dursg the year 2750 0 -
Pl duiisg tis year A08TT3ITH -
242,173,573 -
Cunresd Maturity within one year {TO30T 434} =
17156 450 o
Uttarn Finance & Investment Limmted
Dpening balance JEETE NS -
Reosivad dufing he vear - 300,000,
Pl diiriesg s year (36.330.810) (11,721 B64)
230,547 306 ZEE.ZTH, 130
Curremt Maturity within one year {E1 I8 489) (56, T18,17H)
1TSS ST 31,559,958
Long Term Loan - {Current Maturity)
Stndand Chartens] Bask 97553 54T 1ZE,TER 533
Easlem Bank Led - 55,126,359
Jamsa Rk ol 45 16 T1T 20,736, K54
Woutuad Trest Bask Lid. £A02 A0 -
Prims Bank Led TOAGT 434 -
Utiara Finenoe & bvestmesd Limibed B 008 ARS 4,718,178
T I— ey
Long Term Loan - {Non-carrent Matwrity)
Sumdan! Charens] Rask ETOTE IR 164 662 508
Fastesn Bank Lod - 192,114 886
Janwssa Bk Lid, | 2h 558 16] 21112234
Mioinal Trost Besk Lid. e Lle 5 -
Prime Bank Lid [ .
Utiara Finsooe & Ibvestmesd Limted L T0G0E BT I31,550 95K
——— s —A0EE,
Name of Institwie Branch Sanciise Mo Mutrity Dute
Sheadan) Charenesd Aask W] ALLTOEE3 00 ROAKIRGE, eic. 07, 10,3009
Eastem Bank Led Principal Crfadmn {Dhaka 0100628 FEALD2ZERNINIS 1000 2000
Jamuss Ak 1ol Gulshan JELHHCEMINIONETERES, e, 009 20LS
Uniara Finasee & byvestmest Limsted Ciulshies UFILM-35200 ] BAG-366 15.11.2003
Becurity against Facilities

1) Registersd Morigage over Faciory Land and  Bullding om pan-passo hasis between Stndand Charered Bank, Fastern Bask Limited and
Janssma Hork Limited of whdch aven of Land s 14770 docimals located at Kathaldn, Tongl, Gaspur where Sinmdard Chaniered Humics share
will not less than BOT 163, 530,000

b} Dernand Promissory Notn & Letier of Contnuation.

) Mgzt Hypothacation over Sioclks and Books Debiors on Par-Mases basis betwesn Standam] Chartered Bank, Bsstern Bank Lid and
Tarwzma Bunl Limited

d} Regianefed Hypotheciton over Plast £ Machinery on Padi-Passi B betwsen Standin] Chistensd Bank, Eastem Bank Lisvited and
Jamusa Hink Limited.

) Un-dated Chequiss) sopporied by Irevocahle Latter of Aothoriy & M emorssdum of Deposit.

1) Personed Guarantes of the Sponsar Dineotors.

. anNumLmePoRTZO19-2020  PAckes




1800 Deferved Tax Lishility

Dieferred tux |kabiliny has been caloulsizd on the revalustion surples of land, Om 4d May 2015, the comgany Bas revaluaed s own land locaind
a1 Squib Fead, Tongi Industrial An, Gazipur by independent valuer Mahfil Hig & Co. The anea of the b is 311,10 Decimals, Book valoe
of the lend wes Tekn &7 410,905 After valustion, this is incressed to 3973 12000, Revalusd amoond is Tala 529 200,095,

The compasy does st tequine 0 comguie deferred i on PPE, becaese i chirpes depreclation s per medhod, conditions and raiz's as
epuciliod i the Ind Schedule of the Income Tax Onlinance, 1984, Deprecistion hes boen charped on &ll dems of Fined Asssts sxcepl for Land
and Land Development oo Reducing Balinpe Methnd Drarng the perind, there were no temporery difference’s between Tax Bese and
Carrping Amnorant of s Asset or Liability.

Amoun! im Taka
30 June 2020 |30 June 2019
Reabusstion Surphus om Lamd & Land Dievelopment 520,900,095 519
Dhefirred Tax Linkdity @ 15%. 79485014 T9.485 014
1900 Short Term Loan
LTR
Standerd Cherterad Hank 5477822 X3, TR0 BG
Eastern Bank Limited - 223,172, B65
Jamuna Bank Limited 34,965,090 6451 542
BRAC Bank Lisvisd 13,093,777 £1L534910
iz Bank Lismitedd 15,977,650 -
150,454,319 865,040,063
5TF
Sundsrd Chirtirad Bank Limited 0,345,879 45,577,701
Eastern Diank Limited . 134,097 908
IPDC Finssce Limiied 100,000,000 151,310,019
IDLE Fnance Limited 92,231,967 50,854,390
Jamuna Tank Limited TRE, TS 663 253,991 K26
BRAC Bank Limited 27 497,347 70,540, 148
Mhssesil Trust Bank Limated 413,609,193 -
Uttara Firance & nvestment Limied 564,234 266
United Finance Limited 19,790,073 .
1,576 AZK,3RR 06,772,102
1,735 BH1.726 1672712, 365
Nume of Institute Branch Eanctlon Mo, Matarity Date
Sianderd Cherered Hank Limitsd Mutijhes| ALLNOSIIMIHIFK LGOS, e, 07.10,20149
Eastern Bank Limitesd Frncigul | Cr. Admmn (Diaks 0100628 ALDZR02019 31.01.2020
IPDIC Finsmce Limited Gulshan IPOCMPIL0] &1 0635, 1 1699 06.06.20 19
IDLL Panance Limitsa Gulsran IDLCAC AL ORPAAL 0181 727 12002018
Tamuni Bank Lirited Gulshan TBLHOVCRMINIDIBT3ES, el 30,09,2019
BRAC Bank Limited Skatmosjeed Road_| | CADVDEaka/SIOLLEL 51201901245 20.04.2020
Seeurity ngalnst Facilities

a) Repimensd Monpage over Facoory Lend and  Building on pari-passu basis berween Standand Chanered Bank, Bicaem Bank Limited snd
Jamuna Besk Limited of which area of Land & 147.70 decimals located at Kathal®a, Tongi, Gaxpur whene Standard Chartered Bank's share
wwill moer heas than BIYT 163,520,000,

i) Demnaaad Prombssory Nooe & Lenst of Continustion.

il Registered Hypotheation over Stocks and Books Debtors on Pari-Iasss besis betowen Standard Chariered Benk, Bastern Bank Lid and
Jamuns Bank Limited.

d) Regisered Hypothecation over Plast & Machinery oo Par-Passa beste betwesn Stindand Chiniered Bank, Basiern Bank Limied snd
Jamuna Bank Liited.

) Un-dated Chegee(s) supporied by Irevocable Letier of Authority & Memorendum of Deposit.

1) Persomal Guarmsizr of the Sponsor Dinectorns.




2y Bamk Orverdraft

110

Ameant in Taks

[ S0dunediah [ 30dwnc36is |

Standard Chartered Bank 6056002 13,028,114
Esstern Bacik Linited - 18,051,664
Tatouns Bank Linised 0136016 183,219,704
BRAL Bank Lisited -
3l 315,199,
Name of Insthwts Branch Account No. Bamction Na. E spiry Drate
Standard Charieres) Bk Matifeed 1124925801 ggémmmmmx 26,11,2020
Cr Admn {Dhaka
Eastern Bank Limited Principal 1012080000477 | 0100628y 31012021
BALIZBO201S
Jarruna Bank Timited Gulshm 01001 33005600 ;z;m“m"m] 0,09.2020
=
Acoounis Payabls
Payahie ki Carminge Cuatanrds LIz3100 1,564,063
Grutulty Payabie 2,096,550 1,423,200
Gas Bl Payable 1551346 4,513,304
Employees Providest Pund 911,599 957,936
Miokile Bill Fayahle 495 163 347,482
IHrectors Remunemntion Peyable 130,000 1200, [HM}
Candloaam Hesd 42 000 42 THHY
AGM Venue Charge 30,000 30,000
Electrichy Bil 2349 770 44,592
Houss Rent {Enginsers & Officens) 0,000 .
Employer's Contribution Provident Fund 18261 O1% .
Unchrimed Dividend 1014 160,154
—— e s—— ke
InderCompany Loan
Mpalymer Construction Limited {Nate-30)
Opening Balmee 20,019 004 .
Buoonived during e yoer . 100,24 1,004
Paid dwring the year [XEVIEES0) {200,222 W)
51,900,313 80,019,004 _
Prenision for Expesses
Accrued Interest on STL & LTL A A 14,782 960
Saaff Sakary Payahike 14,240,431 13,842 482
Awdit Fees 125 oo 118,750
Ierest payable on Inter-Compiny Loss 7344421 3,584,550
VIS payable 1,386,340 2,805,314
TDS Payahile 817,390 934,827
— AT N
Ievierest on Inter.Company Loan o be pead 2 prevading market rate i sccording mmd_mm
WPPF & Welfare Fund
Opeaing Balance £.926 526 5,568,483
WPPF Diisburssd to Beneficiary (B.926,526) {5,568,483)
Allocation Far the year (Mole-32) 10,017 063 5,026,826
P 1) hr . E—7. L

Govt. partion has been paid through Pay Orvder Mo, 4263655 Dated: 16.02.2020




Amgunt in Taka
Wdune2020 || 30 Jume 2019
150 Provigion N Tacation

Opening Radamce 68,852,719 48 536,615
Provision. for the yesr (& 25% (Mote- 33) $0,084 508 43402 433
Tex Adjustment ngrinst assessment (2016-2007 FY) . (X2,086,318)
Tax Adjustmenl agains asscssmest (200172008 FY) (15,450, 205 -

V. 2 v . %1

Prior Yesr Adjustment on hcoms Tax Assessmend has been made for the Income Year 201 7-2018 wotal Tie 33, 530,504 (against
Retained Earnings Tk. 7,080,209 qnd Provision for tax Tk 26,450,208 under Motz - 11 & 16),

1600 Hevenss
Met Local Sales, Met off VAT 13T 5T 2038 447 057
Export Sabes 60,381, B60 61,559,787
— 3832056238 3 W, (W7, 744
Supplemneniary duly i nol applscable, YAT on axport are meeo rated, VAT om local sales are 15% for manufdcurer (Soction 3 & 7
of VAT Act, 15961
Qunmtity (MT)- Finished Gaods
Opening Slock 5415 4912
Production daring the year IENIT 34,362
Gioods available for Sale 44,347 3,254
Closing Stock of Pindshed (ronds (5,72%) (5,425)
I7.00 Costof Gosds Sald ode
Crpening Stock of Faw Maierizls 483,070,824 412,934,250
Purchese during the vear AR BTE G4 2,053,835 597
Closing Stock of Raw Materials (367.342,309) (483,070,824)
Raw Materials Usid in Production 7m 130T 604,579 033,701,023
Manufactusmmy Overhsad 17403 247,841,874 414,657 490
Consumption of Packing Matorials 19,525 588 14 253 344
Total Production Costs T R64, 572040 ZAR2 641 B5E
Onening Work in Proccss 35,501,254 34,063,520
Closing Woek in Progess 41,518, 1 01
Costls ol Goods Manufciured 1,858,555,169 ZARZ,004, 122
Crpenmg Stock of Findshed Goods 302 510625 352,726,548
Genods Available for Sales 1.250,065,704 2,R34, 730,670
Closing Stock of Pinished (oods 1741 (420,203, BTEY (352,310,625
Cont of Goods Sekd AT, A0
1701 Raw Malerial Used in Froduction
20192020 |1 2018-2019
— Quantity {MT) Takn Quantity (MT) Taka
Opening Slock 8930 4R3,070,824 T.BE0 432,936,250
Purchese during the year A3 210 2ABLETE (64 17,950 2,053 B35 557
52,140 2964 946, 808 45,810 514,771,847
Closing Stock (@980) (567342 309) {8,9301) (453,070,824
N ¥ W UL B0 1L Vi —1 L. — )Pl 115
I7.0T Siock ol Fingshid (Fomls amil Walwe of each Ay iAol lows:
Catngary 30 June 2020 [30 Jume 2019
Quantity Value (TK) Quantity Value (TK)
PV Pipe - 2,340 179,665 200
PV Fittings - 1,968 B B14,525
PV Disinr - 785 T7,218,300
Waler Tank & Tap - = 33T 34,702 600
Total 5,715 420,193,876 5425 A9 510,615
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Amount in Taka
1703 Manufacturing Overbead
Splary & 'Wages 5T 606 426 o, 6, T4 1
C & F Comenlssion Expenses 4,426,080 5,101,919
Canveyance 91,477 253,181
Estersinment & Staff Food H210807 2,218,272
House Rent (Engineers & Oficers) 1,635,175 1,170,453
Esusance Premior [Fire) T2 4,030,170
Labour Charges {Loading & Unload) 16,273,599 &, 195 B2
Land Himt 65T 402 5,062,000
hisdical Expenses 244,340 TET, 442
FPepers & Porvodicals 15,650 IB1ED
Postage & Stamps 23076 14,436
Power & Fuel 131 489,922 150,570, T04
Printing Expenses 233,676 279,307
Feparr and Maintenance BL3, 755 1,316,132
Statbomery 15T 16,395
Siores and Spares 136,178 376,250
Telephoss & Maoblle Bill B3IL T4 5T9. 540
Warehonse Bent 345,000 250,000
Undfiormn Expenses 12,000 232,024
Diepreciation Mites- 4 208,791,163 D&R, 9,026
TS Expenses . 1,011,975
WIS Expenses = 1,946,117
—TR 4SSN
BB Admintsirative, Selling and Digribstion Expimses

Administrative Expenses:
Selary & Allowsneess TE 368,052 T3363,TH
Mazaging IMrectees' Remunction & Porquisitcs Motes- 36 LA40,000 1,440,000
AGM Vesme Chasge 34,500 25,000
Anmun| Listing Fees of DSE & CSE AL, 168 567,650
Aupdin Fees 125000 95,000
COBL Service Fee T, 569 =
Conveyames 249,397 259,730
Credit Rating Service 103, 500 o, 000
Dereciors’ Board Mewimp Fees 158,700 218,000
Donarion & Subscription 1,340,000 -
Dhepreciabion Motes- 4 10,458,285 10,547,971
Electric, WASA Bills, GAS Bills 1,240,870 1,241,581
Eagpluyers Contitatian Recogmized Provident Fund 21,944,398 10,255,122
Emeniinnnent G 46T 212,083
Fees & Professional Charges 56,250 GER, D00
Fuel kills for Vehdele 1585433 1,175,263
Group Inmerance T3 500 Toud, 59
License Renewal Fes, Rates & Tazes LAI06TE 1,393,453
Medical Expenses 11,450 650,691
(Ml Equipsnzsl Masnienancs TE,565 44,800
(ffice Maintenance 1066771 1,666,827
M Rl L4225 180 13,727 880
Pepers & Periodicals 7,341 I3,12%
Postage, Stamp & Courier 158,259 16E, 662
Printing Expenses 635,532 S44, 602
Statsonery Expemses 19,80 764 823
Telephone & Mahile Bill 9,13 1,434,382
Trainmg & Developmment 05,175 o084
Wehich: Muinbemand: 1.34%,639 1,075,284
TS Expenses - 2 A5 B49
VIS Eapenss - 7,639,297 |

142,046,676 133,148, 798
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Selling and Distribution Expenses:
Achertisement & FPublicity
Conveyanoe

Entertainmmet

Fued bills for Vehiele
Crodown Rent

Incemtive

Labsar Charpes (Unbkosd)
Postage, Stamp & Courier
Printing Expenses
FPromotiosal Expenses

Sales Conference’ Mesting
Seationery Expenses
Telephane & Mobile Ball
Tender & Testing Expenscs
Trangpont |/ Carrisge Oubwards
Traveling Expenses

Vehdele Malsienanee

Director™s Kemuneration and FMerguisites

Br. Rind Babmud
Mr, Golam Murshed

29.00 Ciher |ocome

BRanghudesh Hank Cazh Assiatance on Bxpor

Interest om Evestment
Acerued Eterest Receiveble an FOE
Cralm on Sale of Fixed Assers

Amsount in Taks
30 June 2020 || 30 June 2019

1,884 543 1,484 930
60,060 434,504
199 446 118,130
679,549 1,759,595
442,000 420,000
2,719,943 2,085 659
- 5,802,121
450,240 152504
T3, 808 £10,503

1,640,457 -
1,316,767 3,775,937
£83,228 197235
3373310 2,151,872
1,061,183 320956
7,606,054 32,745 8209
15,191,547 16,686,541
1,811,051 1,612 926
50,951,958 73,261,010

301,998 634 206269808
1,440,000 1 440,000
.1 . I} ..

6,422 840 1,897
11,133,845 5,336,250
3,127,845 936,612

42,151 -

1 11,970,153

— 20,726,731
Transactions desomisarad in forelgn currencles are irasalated into Banghsdeshi Takn fnd reconded ¢ twics of exchange rullng on
the date of trunsacticon in accordanes with TAS 21 “The Effects of Changss in Foreign Exchange Rates™,

Fereign Excheange Gam{Loss)

3.0 Fimencisl Fxpemses
Bank Charpes
Accrued bvrerest on Ineer-Compasy Loan
Inderest om Short Term Loan :
Intereal om OO
Interest on L.TR & STF Losn

Interest om Lamg term: Loan 1
Intereat om Long Term Loan

Acerued Enterest oo STL & LTL

L0 WPPF and Welfare Fund
Profit beloes WPPF and Tax
Allocation for WEFPF and WF @ 3%

3100 Provision for Tazwetion
et Profic Before Tax
Prowision for Toostion &) 25%

© AnNumLRePomTzol92020  pAcEe

(2,053 52K 1.6K1
A A
3,280,662 2,291 240
1,344,421 3584550
39,797,156 23,660,493
9,214,403 56,904,168
149, 636,64 | B6A40.451
54,815,065 B2,046,797
54815065 B2046,797
4 4B 4% 14, TR B60
e LIS e JALLIIE
210,358,293 178 19
S %) . .} 1
200,341 352 L% Gl &893
—t s e SALAL



.h-nl.h.ilh

i Jume 2050 || 3ib Junc 2019

3400 EPS, MAY and NOLCFFS
Enrnings Per Share (EPS)
Nl Profit Aller Tax 150,255 024 13720720
MNumber of Ordinary Shares Chutstanding 36,461, 834 2,491 534
LIS 149
IMlwted Exrmimgs Per Share (DEPS)
Mo DEPS is required #o be caloulsied sinos thers was oo scope for dikation of share during the period under review.
Net Asset Yoloe Per Share (WAY)
Met Assel Walise 1,304,083, 706 1,165,507 5491
Number af Ordinary Shares Chistanding 16,451 R34 16 49) 714
S350 ALSS
Met Drperating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net Operating Cash Flow MNode-Ld. (4 243,025,271 {28,139 514)
MNumber of Oedinary Shases Chutstanding _ An491 834 34,491 834
] 249
3500 Net Opersting Cash Flow
Under MHrect method:
Revenoe 3432056 238 (000 06 Tl
Addd: Opening Trade Debioms 510,671 | 98 321.30% |28
1.943,629.435 3321,310,872
Less: Closmp Trade Debiors (731,489 985) (510,673, 198]
3,212,139.450 ZRI0,637,674
Imterest on FIR 11,133,845 9,336,258
Bengladesh Hank Crsh Assistence on Export 6,422 844 1,687271
Collpetion frem Sales and Odbers 3,129,6%6,135 I1,821,671,195
Cost of Goods Sold (2,R30,771,919) (2,442,200, 04 5)
Adminisirative & Selling Expenses (20],958,634) (204,249, 80R)
Dreprocation 219,249 449 198,567 897
Intermst on LTR & 5TF Laan (153,685,130) (101,223,311)
AT Pabd wi Port (kaport / expont Siape & Wehbcbes) (127,253,950) (133, 840,577)
Tax Deduction at Seurce (TTI5) {1,679, 140) (4, 543)
AIT Refund 155,122 655 -
WEPPT Diishumsed in Beneficiary (8,926,826) (5,360 453)
Foreign Exchenge (Gain'( Lass) (2,053,028 (1,651,397)
Pruvision fur Expenses {8,237 822) 22,356,201
(ImeresaspDecpeape in Bventories (152,720,079} (244, 086,412)
Inirease(Dozreass) o Citber Current Liabdlitles 25,812,502 2,009,500
(IncressspDierrzage in Ciber Currst Assets 60,472 8 (6,4%0,133)
Payment in Seppliers, Employees and Others {2, 98, 670 RES) (2919 810, 711)
MNet Cosh Flows from Operating Activitles 243025 371 {50,130 21 65

MNet Operating Cash Flows s jusd the resaltast figare of Cash Inflows snd Ouwiflows from Operating Activithes, Therefore, the main
reasan. for significant deviation in KOCFFS is rearranpesnent of presentstion in the Siaterment of Cash Flows in terms of previous
vieke's Shar Term Losn snd also the eath nflow of Th 19,51 arose AT sefand which wae all dusing the previows yes,

36,00 Director's Remaneration and Pergwisites
blr, Risd Mahsud 1,440, ) 1,440,000
[N Y VL. V. V.1 %
3700 Capacity Utillzstion
Capacity of Production in M. Ton| Utilizntion {MT) Haie |
year [ 30 June 2020 |30 June 2019 30 June 2009 || 30 June 2019
(Installed Capacity 43,000 Current 18,922 14,362 B6.49% 90.43%

vear, Last wear 38,000 M. Ton)
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3800

3900

AL}

4100

Capital Expenditure Commitment:
Theery wad no Capital Expendiiun: commatment & on 30 June, 2030,

Coatlngent Liakdlity:

(T} There was to contingent Lability as om 30 June, 7020,

(IT) There was nn cluim aguinst the compeny, nod sckeowledged ns debd 2 on 3 Jane, 2020,

(T} Theere was nos credil [ecilsly available 1o the company under any comiract.

(TVITheere was no bank guarasies ispead by the company on behalf of their dirsctors or the company feelf except hank loan.

The following amounts. has been demsnded by VAT Authority as per their departmental audit ohjection against which cases have
ks fibed in Tritmnal and Cioart, B b8 probable thar the jodgenent will ke i fovour of the compey,

Perind A ot Statm
, Wil petition no. 7442 of 2003 i the Honorable Supreme Court of
July' 1998 i Apeil' 2000 5,148,712 Bangladesh, High Couart Divisi
, Wil petition no. 1755 of 2009 i the Homorable  Sapreme Cout of
Janaery' H0H6 i bone' 2008 11,646,222 Bangladesh, High Court Divisi
Filed o case with Homorable Appellote Tribumal or proper judgmest
Janopry' MG to Fone' 2008 4545225 | lwhich 18 under jusisdiction. Wel petition no. 3217 of 2000 in e
Heomorahle Sapreme Coust of Bangladesh, High Coart Division
Wit petition no. 3258 of 2009 m the Homarzhle Sapreme Couct af
Jaly' HHE i December’ 2H0E 7,534,439 Bangladesh, High Courl diviss

All of these cazses are stayed oll disposal of Rule,

Related Party Transactions

Partics are conalderad to be related if one party has the shility so control the other prrty or exerclae significent Inflosnc: ower the
other party in making financial and operational decision and inchede associated companies with or without common directors and
key management personnel. The Company has entersd tnbo transsetions wilh oeher entitses in noemal courss of basines that fill
within the definition of reloed party as per 1AS 24 Related Panty Disclosures.

Imaring the vear, the commpasy has the following relsed Iransaciions,

Numgeof || Xotal Transsctien Outstanding Balance |
Related P Relatinns
iy & md Trmactions || 2012020 || servaem 20152019
M. Riad Mahroud, , Femunerstion 1,440,000 12:0,000 1240, Do
Treciors Buard Meeling Fees 158,700 . .
Inter-Company
Laan Payable Bavement - -
Mipalymer Comsiruction Limited, Dyxming Hulere RO 139,004 - -
Comenom Management {Mote- 22 R — ) ~ -
Pl dericy the yeur {28,238,691} 1,900,313 | £0,019,004
JRN—- ¥ .1 R — 1. L
Number of Employees

Engaged

As por the Schedule X1 of the Companies Act, 19594, the number of emplovess (includmg contractual erployees) engaged for the
whhle year o part theneof who received a total remuseratbon of Taka 36,000+ per annmm or Taka 3,000/ per month wene Ml s ibe
end of June 2020 a5 agairst Nl in 2015

The purmber of Employess Engaged for the whiole vear

The mumiber of Binard of Dhirectoms

833 Person
& Person

%






|"p@|.f-| NATIONAL POLYMER INDUSTRIES LTD.

FUATHCHAAL MO DAY TOMWER: 57-37/A Gulshan Avenue {2nd Floor], Gulshan-1, Chala-1212.

being a Member of National Polymer Industries Ltd, hereby appoint
&% myour proxy 1o attend and vote an ry/our behalf at the 33rd Annueal General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held an
December 21, 2020 (Monday) at 11:00 AM in the Digital Platform and,or at any adjowrnment thereof.

A WSS Y RN TS .. oeveeesescemssssseesss s e BV OF e sssemns s seesss e enes 2020

Aevenue Stamg
o T, 20,00

Signature of Proxy

Signature of Shareholders)
Mool shares held ... eeeenerar e
Registered Folio/BO 1D Me.:

HEEEEEEEN NN

MNote: The Proxy Form, duly stamped, must be submitted through email at malegue@nationalpalymer.net
or hard copy to the Corporate Head Office of the Company at least 48 hours befare the meeting.

|Hp@|_\r] NATIONAL POLYMER INDUSTRIES LTD.

DAY TOWER: 57-57/A Gulshan Avenue (nd Floor), Guishan-1, Dhaka-1312.

I"We record myfour attendance at the 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of National Polymer Industries Ltd. being held
on December 21, 2020 (Monday) at 11:00 AM in the Digital Platform.

faglstered Follo/BO 1D No.:

Signature o Member/Proxy

Mote: Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendance
slip and deposit the same to the entrance of the AGM.

C mewmmommeam  meem




o www.facebook.com/npolymer @% www.nationalpolymer.net
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NATIONAL POLYMER

QIBIAd AT 55 AGd
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NATIONAL POLYMER GROUP

UDAY TOWER:
Plot No. - 57 & 57/A (2nd Floor), Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Dhaka - 1212.

Fax : (+8802) 58814967, E-Mail: info@nationalpolymer.net

CONTACT NUMBER:
General Inquiry: +88 02 58812926, 58813039, HE2
Sales Inquiry: +88 01971644758, 01970068906, 01971822283. Scan QR for more details




Scan QR for more details

CPVC PIPE

UDAY TOWER:
Plot No. - 57 & 57/A (2nd Floor), Gulshan Avenue
Gulshan-1, Dhaka - 1212.

o www.facebook.com/npolymer

ALWAYS

ASTEP

o info@nationalpolymer.net

AHEAD

a product of
NATIONAL POLYMER INDUSTRIES LTD.

in plastic technologies

HDEP PIPE

e Phone : (+8802) 58812926, 58813039
Fax : (+8802) 58814967

@ www.nationalpolymer.net



